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I

City of Liberty, Kentucky

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Ourdiscussion and analysis ofthe City of Liberty's financial performance provides an overview of
the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Please read in conjunction
with the auditor's report on page 9-10 and the City's financial statements, which begin on page
11.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

• The City's net position decreased in the governmental activities and decreased in the
business-type activities. The net position of the governmental activities decreased by
$745,491, and the net position of the business-type activities decreased to $8,789,067,
which was a 6.3 percent decrease from the previous year.

• In the City's governmental activities, revenues increased by $178,337, or 21.1 percent,
and expenses increased by 97.8 percent to $2,041,272. In the business-type activities,
revenues decreased to $2,669,620 which is a decrease of 2.2 percent, while expenses
decreased by 5.6 percent to $2,997,782.

OVERVIEW OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists ofthe management's discussion and analysis report, the independent
auditors' report, the basic financial statements ofthe City and the independent auditors' report on
compliance. The financial statements also include notes that explain in more detail some of the
information in the financial statements.

The City's financial statements now present two kinds of statements, each with a different
snapshot ofthe City's finances. Thefocus is both the City as a whole (government-wide) and the
fund financial statements. The government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and
short-term information about the City's overall financial status. The fund financial statements
focus on the individual funds of the City, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements. Both perspectives (government-wide and fund) allow the user to
address relevant questions, broaden the basis of comparison (year to year or government to
government) and enhance the City's accountability.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. One ofthe most important questions
asked about the City's finances is "Is the City as a whole better off orworse off as a result ofthis
year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information
about the City's activities in a way that will help answer this question. These statements include
all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
used by most private-sector companies. Ail of the current year's revenues and expenditures are
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the net position ofthe City and the changes in them. One can think
ofthe City's net position—the difference between assets and liabilities—as one way to measure
financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position
are an indicator of whether its financial health or position is improving or deteriorating. However,
one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions,
population growth, changes in property tax rates or valuation, infrastructure asset condition, and
new or changed government legislation.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds
of activities:

Governmental activities—Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including general
government administration, police, fire, dispatch, streets, sanitation and parks. Property taxes,
licenses and permits, and grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type activities—The City collects fees from customers to cover the costs of the services,
which includes gas, water, sewer and garbage.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Traditional users of government financial statements will find the fund financial statement
presentation more familiar. The focus is now on the City's funds. The fund financial statements
provide more information about the City's funds and not the City as a whole.

The City has two kinds of funds:

Governmental Fund—Most of the City's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets, that can readily be converted to cash, flow in
and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps the reader determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance the City's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-
term focus ofthe government-wide statements, additional information is provided at the bottom of
the governmental funds statement that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

Proprietary Fund—Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds.
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NET POSITION

Our analysis begins with a summary ofthe City's Statement of Net Position, which is presented
on Table A-1 followed by an explanation of the results. Changes in net position are presented in
Table A-2. which is also followed by an explanation of the results.

Table A-1

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Governmental Business-type

Activities

Totai Primary

Government

FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY2014

Current and Other Assets $ 558,454 15 389,533 $ 1,585,969 :J 1,759,241 $ 2,144,423 $ 2,148,774

Capital Assets 2,241,037 2,370,662 13,032,600 13,717,439 15,273,637 16,088,101

Deferred Outflows 29,497 31,320 81,966 86,363 111,463 117,683

Total Assets 2.828,988 2,791,515 14,700,535 15,563,043 17,529,523 18,354,558

Long-Term Debt Outstanding 889,699 118,779 4,683,750 4,905,000 5,573,449 5,023,779

Net Pension 322,610 363,987 639,763 721,817 962,373 1,085,804

Deferred Inflows 28,695 -
56,905 -

85,600 -

Current Liabilities 101,395 76,669 531,050 557,070 632,445 633,739

Total Liabilities 1,342,399 559,435 5,911,468 6,183,887 7,253,867 6,743,322

Net Position:

Invested in Capital Assets,

net of related debt 2,122,258 2,222,659 8,151,071 8,581,816 10,273,329 10,804,475

Restricted 315,209 246,935 164,250 164,250 479,459 411,185

Unrestricted (950,878) (237,514) 473,746 633,090 (477,132) 395,576

Total Net Position $ 1,486,589 $ 2,232^80 $ 8,789,067 $ 9,379,156 $ 10,275,656 $ 11,611,236

As further explained in notes 8 and 11 of the Notes to the Financial Statements, GASB Statement
No. 68 changed how governments calculate and report the costs and obligations associated with
pensions. This new standard required the City of Liberty to report a net pension liability, pension
expense and pension related deferred Inflows and outflows of resources based on their
proportionate share of the collective amounts from the Kentucky County Employees Retirement
System. Information necessary to meet the new reporting requirement for the current year was
provided by the Kentucky Retirement System. However, information necessary to restate all
values for the prior year were not provided. As such, only net pension liability, and deferred
outflows of resources have been restated for the prior year. A $969,483 adjustment to the prior
year's ending net position was made to represent the total retroactive effects of the application of
GASB 68. This is important to note as we compare current year and prior year balances since
there were no adjustments to the prior year statement of activities.

After the change described above, the net position ofthe City's governmental activities decreased
from $2,232,080 in 2014 to $1,486,589 in 2015, which is a 33.4% decrease. The net position of
the business-type activities decreased from $9,379,156 to $8,789,067 in 2015, which is a 6.3
percent decrease. The net position from one activity generally cannot be used to make up for
any deficits in the other activities.
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NET POSITION, continued

Table A-2

Condensed Statement of Activities

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Government

FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2014

Revenues

Proaram Revenues

Charges for Service $ 2,800 $ 2,840 $ 2,645,077 $ 2,699,072 $ 2,647,877 $ 2,701,912

Operating Grants &
Contributions 86,866 90,608 - - 86,866 90,608

Capital Grants &

Contributions 47,646 8,250 3,382 6,631 51,028 14,881

General Revenue - -

Taxes 377,619 265,476 - - 377,619 265,476

License fees 309,860 259,568 - -
309,860 259,568

Permits 5,512 20,439 - - 5,512 20,439

Other Grants and

Contributions 2,455 2,054 - - 2,455 2,054

Investment Earnings 1,971 7,307 17,178 24,208 19,149 31,515

Management fees 135,000 135,000 - - 135,000 135,000

Miscellaneous 52,447 52,297 3,983 404 56,430 52,701

Total Revenue 1,022,176 843,839 2,669,620 2,730,315 3,691,796 3,574,154

Program Expenses

General Government 1,367,120 426,399 - - 1,367,120 426,399

Public Safety - Police 361,570 375,133 - -
361,570 375,133

Public Safety - Fire 156,066 140,251 - -
156,066 140,251

Streets Department 144,909 85,999 -
144,909 85,999

Interest on Long-term Debt 11,607 4,315 - - 11,607 4,315

Utility - -
2,997,782 3,175,534 2,997,782 3,175,534

Total Program Expenses 2,041,272 1,032,097 2,997,782 3,175,534 5,039,054 4,207,631

Other Changes

Transfers 256,689 156,113 (5,238) (156,113) 251,451 -

Gain (loss) on sale of assets 16,916 2,403 (256,689) 3,392 (239,773) 5,795

Total Other Changes 273,605 158,516 (261,927) (152,721) 11,678 5,795

Change In Net Position $ (745,491) $ (29,742) $ (590,089) $ (597,940) $(1,335,580) $ (627,682

The City's total revenue increased by 3.3 percent and the total cost of all programs reflected an
increase of 19.8 percent. On the following page is a more in-depth description of the revenues
and expenses ofthe governmental and business-type activities.

Looking at the business-type activities, revenues for the City decreased to $2,669,620, or 2.2
percent, while total expenses decreased 5.6 percent. The decrease of revenues combined with
the decrease ofexpenses and increase in other changes decreased the change in net position to

-4-



($590,089). The City's major source of revenue in the business-type activities is charges for
services, which decreased to $2,645,077. This revenue source makes up 99.1 percent of total
revenues. The capital grants and contributions included grants for the water and sewer system
expansion as discussed on page 7.

As previously noted, prior year balances do not include adjustments for GASB 68 beyond an
adjustment to the ending net position, net pension liability and deferred outflows of resources
balances. The effect of the implementation of GASB 68 on the current year resulted in a
reduction of $65,735 to the monthly payments made to the Kentucky Retirement System. This
amount represents changes in the net pension liability from year to year.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Next, the City analyzes the governmental activities and the changes in those activities, which is
presented in Table A-3.

Table A-3

FY2015 FY2014 Chanqe

Taxes $ 377,619 $ 265,476 $ 112,143

Licenses and permits 315,372 280,007 35,365

Fines and Forfeits 1,240 1,175 65

intergovernmental 136,967 100,912 36,055

Charges for Services 2,800 2,840 (40)

Other Revenues 188,178 193,429 (5,251)

Total Revenues 1,022,176 843,839 178,337

General Government $ 1,291,029 $ 359,564 $ 931,465

Public Safety 466,161 459,018 7,143

Streets Department 144,909 85,999 58,910

Capital Outlay 122,941 127,595 (4,654)

Debt Service 40,831 33,857 6,974

Total Expenditures 2,065,871 1,066,033 999,838

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

over Expenditures $(1,043,695j $ (222,194) $ (821,501)

Revenues for the City's governmental activities increased by 21.1 percent, while total
expenditures increased by 93.8 percent. Governmental activities (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) increased by $821,501. The City's major
sources of revenue in the governmental activities are other revenue (18.4 percent), licenses and
permits (30.9 percent), taxes (36.9 percent) and intergovernmental (13.4 percent). These
revenue sources increased 21.2 percent in 2015. The major change in expenditures in the
governmental activities was an increase in general government of$931,465 which $1,014,909 is
due to the support of the education center by the City during 2015.
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BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the City budget several times. These
amendments were made shortly after the beginning of the year to reflect events that may occur.
The budget contains proposed expenditures and expected revenues. A comparison of the final
amended budget to actual amounts is presented in the table below (Tables A-4 & 5).

Table A-4

Condensed Governmental Activities - Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Budget Actual Variance

Taxes $ 274,750 $ 281,225 $ 6,475

Licenses and permits 305,500 315,372 9,872

Fines and Forfeitures 1,000 1,240 240

intergovernmental 85,546 89,003 3,457

Charges for Services 2,600 2,800 200

Other Revenues 172,625 184,093 11,468

Transfers in (out) 230,000 256,689 26,689

Sale of Asset 144,500 144,557 57

Note Proceeds 750.000 850,000 100,000

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources $ 1,966,521 $2,124,979 $ 158,458

Table A-5

Condensed Governmental Activities - Expenditures

General Government

Public Safety

Streets Department

Bond issuance expense

Debt Service

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Budget

$ 1,288,910

478,430

67,450

34,918

96,730

$ 1,966,438

Actual

$1,289,437

466,161

66,332

13,500

40,831

122,941

$1,999,202

Variance

$ 527

(12,269)

(1,118)

5,913

26,211

$ 32,764

The City budgeted for a total of $1,966,521 in revenues and other financing sources for 2015, but
ended up having revenues of $2,124,979, which put the City over the revenue budget by
$158,458. A total of $1,966,438 was budgeted for expenses, and actual expenditures totaled
$1,999,202 at the end of 2015. The City was under budget on the expenses by $32,764, as
detailed above.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

As discussed in Table A-6, the City has a totai of $26,803,660 invested in a broad range of capital
assets, including poiice and fire equipment and vehicles, buildings, land, infrastructure assets,
and water and sewer lines. This amount represents a 0.6 percent decrease from last year's total
investment of $26,955,163.

The major capital additions in the governmental activities were a fire truck engine $23,535, fire
department equipment for $4,400, sidewalks for $21,027 and two police cruisers for $65,830.
The business-type activities major capital additions were various water and sewer equipment for
$20,686.

Table A-6

Capital Assets at Year End Without Depreciation

Governmental Business-type Total Primary

Activities Activities Government

FY2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY 2014 FY2015 FY 2014

Land &Improvements $1,481,869 $1,457,872 $ - $ - $ 1,481,869 $ 1,457,872
Construction in Progress 4,000 4,000 129,886 18,000 133,886 22,000

Buildings &Improvements 984,480 1,133,688 - - 984,480 1,133,688
Vehicles &Equipment 870,797 825,775 - - 870,797 825,775
Water &Sewer System ^ l. 23,332,628 23,515,828 23,332,628 23,515,828

Total Capital Assets $3,341,146 $3,421,335 $ 23,462,514 $23,533,828 $ 26,803,660 $ 26,955,163

' DEBT

This year the City has $5,873,779 in debt, a 10.7 percent increase from last year's total of
$5,307,878. The City entered into a lease with Casey County Bank for expenses related to the
Casey County Education and Learning Center for $850,000.

Table A-7

Debt Outstanding at Year End

Governmental Business-type Total Primary

Activities Activities Government

Note Payable

Revenue Bond Payable

FY2015 FY2014 FY 2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY2014

$ 968,779 $ 148,003 $ $ 17,792 $ 968,779 $ 165,795
_ 4.905.000 5.142.083 4.905.000 5.142.083

$ 968,779 $ 148,003 $ 4,905,000 $ 5,159,875 $ 5,873,779 $ 5,307,878
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City's elected officials consider many factors when setting the fiscal year 2016 budget. Some
of the factors are the local economy, expected grant money, and anticipated tax revenue.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens of the City, taxpayers, customers,
investors and creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's
accountability for the money it receives. Ifyou have questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact Ms. Sharieen Rodgers, City Clerk, at P.O. Box 127, Liberty, KY
42539.
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Members American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

and KentuckySociety of CertifiedPublicAccountants

CPAs' Consultants
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Mayor and the City Council
City of Liberty
Liberty, Kentucky

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Liberty, Kentucky, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
in making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on theeffectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinion

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Liberty, Kentucky, as of June 30, 2015, and
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principlesgenerally accepted in the United States of America.

RFH, PLLC • 300 WestVineStreet, Suite800 • Lexington, Kentuclty 40507-1812
Phone: 859-231-1800 " Fax: 859-422-1800 • Toll-Free: 1-800-342-7299 www.rfhcpas.com



other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and pension schedules on pages 1 through 8
and 34 through 38 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, orhistorical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Liberty, Kentucky's basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor
governmental fund financial statements and the combining statement ofwater and sewer fund operating
revenues and expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements and the combining statement ofwater
and sewer fund operating revenues and expenses are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements and the combining statement of water
and sewer fund operating revenues and expenses are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated May 2, 2016,
on our consideration of the City of Liberty, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Liberty, Kentucky's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

mi
RFH, PLLC
May 2, 2016
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2015

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash $ 363,560 $ 498,856 $ 862,416
Investments 125,289 701,964 827,253
Receivables, net 76,625 202,570 279,195
Interest receivable 66 3,518 3,584
Other assets 7,725 - 7,725
Grant receivable -

_

Internal balances (14,811) 14,811 -

Total current assets 558,454 1,421,719 1,980,173

Noncurrent assets

Restricted assets

Cash - 164,250 164,250
Capital assets

Construction in progress 4,000 129,886 133,886
Land and Improvements 757,851 104,272 862,123
Utilitysystems, net - 12,798,442 12,798,442
Depreciable buildings, property.
and equipment, net 1,479,186 - 1,479,186

Total noncurrent assets 2,241,037 13,196,850 15,437,887

Total assets 2,799,491 14,618,569 17,418,060

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows - pension 29,497 58,495 87,992

Defeasance on refunding
-

23,471 23,471

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 2,828,988 $ 14,700,535 $ 17,529,523

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 11,079 $ 91,311 S 102,390
Accounts payable-construction - -

-

Accrued liabilities 11,236 52,130 63,366
Customer deposits - 154,605 154,605
Accrued interest payable - 11,754 11,754
Current portion of long-term
obligations 79,080 221,250 300,330

Total current liabilities 101,395 531,050 632,445

Noncurrent liabilities

Noncurrent portion of long-term
obligations 889,699 4,683,750 5,573,449

Net pension liability 322,610 639,763 962,373

Total noncurrent liabilities ' 1,212,309 5,323,513 6,535,822

Total liabilities 1,313,704 5,854,563 7,168,267

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Inflows - pension 28,695 56,905 85,600

NET POSITION

Net investment In capital assets 2,122,258 8,151,071 10,273,329
Restricted for other purposes 315,209 164,250 479,459
Unrestricted (950,878) 473,746 (477,132)

Total net position 1,486,589 8,789,067 10,275,656

Total liabilities, deferred Inflows of resources and net position $ 2,828,988 £ 14,700,535 17,529,523

The accompanying notes are an integrai
part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

for the year ended June 30, 2015

Net (Expense] Revenue and
Changes in Net PositionProgram Revenues

1 Operating Capitai Primary Government

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmentai Business-type

Functions/Proarams Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Totai

1 Primary government
Governmental activities

i General government
Public safety-Poiice

, Pubiic safety-Fire
! Street department

Interest on long-term debt

$ 1,367,120
361,570
156,066

144,909

11,607

S 1,455
1,345

$ 22,623

16,279

47,964

$
36,196

11,450

$ (1,343,042)
(307,750)
(144,616)

(96,945)
(11,607)

$ - $ (1,343,042)
(307,750)
(144,616)

(96,945)
(11,607)

Totaigovernra'entai
, activities 2,041,272 2,800 86,866 47,646 (1,903,960) (1,903,960)

1 Business type activities
5 Utility

Totai business-type
> activities

2,997,782 2,645,077 3,382 (349,323) (349,323)

2,997,782 2,645,077 3,382 _ (349,323) (349,323)

Totai primary government $ 5,039,054 $ 2,647,877 $ 86,866 $ 51,028

General revenues

Taxes

Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Restaurant tax

License fee

Franctiise

Insurance premiums
Permits

Building
City Stickers

Fines and forfeitures

Grants and contributions

not restricted to specific programs
Investment earnings
Management fees
Misceiianeous

Totai generai revenues

Gain (loss) on sale of assets
Transfers

Total general revenues
and transfers

Change in Net Position

Net position-beginning, as restated

NET POSITION-ENDiNG

The accompanying notes are an Integral
part of the financial statements
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(1,903,960) (349,323) (2,253,283)

281,225 - 281,225

96,394 -
96,394

76,016 _ 76,016

233,844
-

233,844

595 595

4,917 - 4,917

1,240
-

1,240

2,455 _ 2,455

1,971 17,178 19,149

135,000 - 135,000

51,207 3,983 55,190

884,864 21,161 906,025

16,916 (5,238) 11,678

256,689 (256,689) -

1,158,469 (240,766) 917,703

(745,491) (590,089) (1,335,580)

2.232.080 9,379,156 11,611,236

$ 1,486,589 $ 8,789,067 $ 10,275,656



ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Receivables (net)
Interest receivable

Other assets

Due from other funds

CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNIWENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2015

General

248,491
68,092
53,946

66

7,725

4,495

Other

Governmental

Funds

$ 115,069
57,197
22,679

125,050

Total

Governmental

Funds

$ 363,560
125,289

76,625
66

7,725

129,545

Total assets $ 382,815 $ 319,995 $ 702,810

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances

Nonspendable
Restricted

Committed

Unassigned

Total fund balances

11,079
11,236

139,570

161,885

7,725

213,205

220,930

4,786

4,786

315,209

315,209

11,079
11,236

144,356

166,671

7,725
315,209

213,205

536,139

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 382,815 $ 319,995 $ 702,810

536,139

2,241,037

802

(1,291,389)

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement
of net position are different because

Fund balances represented above
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and therefore are not
reported In the funds

Net deferred inflows/outflows related to the long-term net pension liability
are not reported in the funds

Long-term liabilities. Including bonds payable and net pension liability,
are not due and payable In the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

for the year ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeits
Intergovernmentai
Charges for service
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government
Public safety-Police
Public safety-Fire
Streets department

Capital outlay
Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of assets

Note proceeds
Bond expense
Transfers in (out)

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances-beginning

FUND BALANCES-ENDING

Reconciiation to government-wide change in net position:
Net change In fund balances
less: proceeds from sale of asset
add: capital outlay expenditurescapitalized
add: debt service expenditures
add: gain on disposal of capital assets
less: depreciationon governmental activities assets
less: note proceeds
change in net pension liability
less: interest on long term debt

Change in net position Governmental Activities

Other

Governmental

Funds

Total

Governmental

FundsGeneral

$ 281,225 $ 96,394 $ 377,619

315,372 - 315,372

1,240 - 1,240

89,003 47,964 136,967

2,800 - 2,800

184,093 4,085 188,178

873,733 148,443 1,022,176

1,289,437 1,592 1,291,029

351,939 - 351,939

114,222 - 114,222

66,332 78,577 144,909

122,941 - 122,941

40,831 - 40,831

1,985,702 80,169 2,065,871

(1,111,969) 68,274 (1,043,695)

144,557 144,557

850,000 - 850,000

(13,500) (13,500)
256,689 - 256,689

1,237,746 1,237,746

125,777 68,274 194,051

95,153 246,935 342,088

$ 220,930 $ 315,209 $ 536,139

194,051
(144,557)
122,941

40,831
16,916

(124,926)
(850,000)

10,860
(11,607)

$ (745,491)

The accompanying notes are an Integral
part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2015

Business-type Activities

\ I

1
Water & Sewer Gas Garbage 2015

Fund Fund Fund Total

1 ASSETS

! Current assets

Gash $ 498,856 $ $ $ 498,856

Investments 54,295 640,536 7,133 701,964

1 Receivables (net) 107,695 63,980 30,895 202,570

! Interest receivable 64 3,454 -
3,518

' Grant receivable - - - -

Due from other funds 12,418 1,393 1,000 14,811

Total current assets 673,328 709,363 39,028 1,421,719

1 Noncurrent assets
Restricted assets

Cash 164,250 - -
164,250

Capital assets:
Construction in progress 124,156 5,730 - 129,886

Land 66,872 37,400 - 104,272

Depreciable utility fixed assets 22,329,319 622,955 276,082 23,228,356

Less accumulated depreciation (9,791,530) (434,265) (204,119) (10,429,914)

' Total noncurrent assets 12,893,067 231,820 71,963 13,196,850

Total assets 13,566,395 941,183 110,991 14,618,569

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows - pension 27,702 24,519 6,274 58,495

Defeasance on refunding 23,471 •
23,471

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 13,617,568 $ 965,702 $ 117,265 $ 14,700,535

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 50,385 $ 29,150 $ 11,776 $ 91,311

Accounts payable-construction - - - -

' Accrued liabilities 21,532 26,899 3,699 52,130

Customer deposits 73,404 81,201 -
154,605

Accrued Interest payable 11,754 - -
11,754

Current portion of long-term obligations 221,250 - -
221,250

: Total current liabilities 378,325 137,250 15,475 531,050

• Noncurrent liabilities

Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 4,683,750 - -
4,683,750

Net pension liability 302.979 268,168 68,616 639,763

Total noncurrent liabilities 4,986,729 268,168 68,616 5,323,513

Total liabilities 5,365,054 405,418 84,091 5,854,563

i DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows - pension 26.949 23,853 6,103 56,905

NET POSITION

• Net investment In capital assets 7,847,288 231,820 71,963 8,151,071

Restricted for

Debt service 164,250 - - 164,250

Unrestricted 214,027 304,611 (44,892) 473,746

i Total net position 8,225,565 536,431 27,071 8,789,067

Total liabiiitlBS and net position $ 13,617,568 $ 965,702 $ 117,265 $ 14,700.535

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

for the year ended June 30, 2015

Business-type Activities

Water & Gas Garbage 2015

Sewer Fund Fund Fund Total

1 Operating revenues
$ 2,645,077Charges for services $ 1,126,238 $ 1,142,572 $ 376,267

I Total operating revenues 1,126,238 1,142,572 376,267 2,645,077

Operating expenses
463,842Salaries and wages 217,242 195,177 51,423

j Casual labor 10,954 10,646 10,335 31,935

! Gas purchases - 384,503 - 384,503

Payroll taxes 15,911 13,446 3,624 32,981

Retirement 28,002 24,784 6,341 59,127

i Uniforms and laundry 7,850 7,250 6,050 21,150

Maintenance and repairs 280,129 38,653 22,902 341,684

Truck expense - - 7,499 7,499

Motor fuel 11,290 9,058 15,905 36,253

! Office expense and postage 6,090 3,370 2,575 12,035

Legal and professional 27,118 7,421 7,421 41,960

Utilities 104,948 9,826 - 114,774

1 Insurance 86,867 58,665 33,254 178,786

Dump expense - 114,320 114,320

Sludge hauling 7,222 - -
7,222

Pretreatment expenses 18,345 - - 18,345

Management fees 43,000 66,000 26,000 135,000

Other expense 17,702 5,935 2,712 26,349

Depreciation 769,815 14,302 28,056 812,173

Total operating expenses 1,652,485 849,036 338,417 2,839,938

; Operating income (loss) (526,247) 293,536 37,850 (194,861)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
17,178Investment eamings 3,420 13,638 120

Interest expense (157,781) - (63) (157,844)

Other revenues 3,983 - -
3,983

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets (5,238) - • (5,238)

i Income(loss) beforecapitalcontributions and transfers (681,863) 307,174 37,907 (336,782)

Capital contributions
Tap fees 500 2,882 -

3,382

I Transfers in (out) 255,691 (469,074) (43,306) (256,689)

Change in net position (425,672) (159,018) (5,399) (590,089)

Total net position-beginning, as restated 8,651,237 695,449 32,470 9,379,156

! TOTAL NET POSiTiON-ENDING $ 8,225,565 $ 536,431 $ 27,071 $ 8,789,067

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

for the year ended June 30, 2015

Business-type Activities

Water & Gas Garbage 2015

Sewer Fund Fund Fund Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVillES

Receipts from customers $ 1,116,846 $ 1,135,781 $ 376,885 $ 2,629,512

Payments to suppiiers (559,117) (531,638) (216,007) (1,306,762)

Payments for interfund services (paymentin lieuof taxes) (43,000) (66,000) (26,000) (135,000)

Payments for empioyee services and benefits (284,746) (246,678) (77,680) (609,104)

Net cash provided by operating activities 229,983 291,465 57,198 578,646

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Bond principal payment (237,085) -
(17.792) (254,877)

Capitai contributions 500 2,882 -
3,382

Proceeds from bond/ioan issuance - - - -

Proceeds from sale of assets - - - -

Purchases of capital assets (120,686) - - (120,686)

Interest paid on capital debt (157,391) -
(334) (157,725)

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities (514,662) 2,882 (18,126) (529,906)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net operating transfers in (out) 255,691 (469,074) (43,306) (256,689)

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 255,691 (469,074) (43,306) (256,689)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest and dividends 3,421 13,361 120 16,902

Net cash provided by investing activities 3,421 13,361 120 16,902

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (25,567) (161,366) (4,114) (191,047)

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning of the year 742,968 801,902 7,013 1,551,883

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-END OF THE YEAR $ 717,401 $ 640,536 $ 2,899 $ 1,360,836

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ (526,247) $ 293,536 $ 37,850 $ (194,861)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation expense 769,815 14,302 28,056 812,173

Change in assets and liabilities
Receivables, net (9,392) (6,671) 618 (15,445)

Due from other funds - - - -

Other assets 6,166 - - 6,166

Accounts and other payabies 2,362 (6,957) (3,369) (7,964)

Accrued expenses (2,523) 6,281 (3,648) 110

Net pension adjustment (10,198) (9,026) (2,309) (21,533)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 229,983 $ 291,465 $ 57,198 $ 578,646

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Noncash capital and related financing activities:

Payabies for capitai items, net (6,156) $ (5,730) $_

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Liberty, Kentucky operates under the City Council form of government and provides the
following services as authorized by its charter: public safety and public works. The accounting policies
of the City of Liberty conform to generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental
units. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies.

A. Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the City of Liberty, Kentucky include the funds, account groups and
entities over which the Mayor and Council exercise significant oversight responsibility. Oversight
responsibility, as defined by Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards, was determined on the basis of the City's scope of public
service, and the ability to significantly influence operation, select the governing body, and
participate in fiscal management.

The Economic Development Authority of Liberty/Casey County is a jointventure between the City
and the Casey County Fiscal Court and is excluded from the City's financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation

The City's financial statements consist of the following:

Management's discussion and analysis (required supplementary information);
Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements

Fund financial statements
Notes to the financial statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities. These statements display information about the City as a whole. The statements
distinguish between governmental and business-type activities of the City. These financial
statements include the financial activities of the City except for fiduciary activities. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely on fees and charges for support. The
government-wide statement ofactivities reflects costsofgovernment by function for governmental
activities and business-type activities. Program revenues include charges paid by recipient for the
goods or services offered by the program and grants or contributions that are restricted to the
program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues of the City.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the City. The accounts of the City are
organized on the basis offunds each ofwhich is considered to be a separate fiscal and accounting
entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that is
comprised of its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expendituresor expenses.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Basis of Presentation, continued

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions are financed. The
governmental fund measurement focus is upon determination of financial position and budgetary
control over revenues and expenditures. Proprietary fund types are used to account for operations
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to business enterprises - where intent of the
governing body is that costs of providing services are to be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges.

The following funds are used by the City of Liberty:

Governmental Fund Tvoes

General Fund - The general operating fund of the City is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Cemetery Fund - A special revenue fund used to account for Glenwood cemetery activities.
1

Municipal Road Aid Fund - A special revenue fund used to account for revenues received |
from the Commonwealth of Kentucky under the gasoline tax distribution program.

Restaurant Tax Fund - A special revenue fund used to account for revenue received for the
City's restaurant tax.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for the ongoing organizations and activities of the City,
which are similar to those found in private business enterprises. The measurement focus is upon
determination of net income, financial position, and changes in cash flows.

Proprietary funds are established to account for the acquisition, operations and maintenance of the
City's facilities and services which are entirely or predominantly self-supported by user charges or
where the City has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes. The City's enterprise operations includethe following:

Water and Sewer Fund - A proprietary fund used to account for the water and sewer services
provided to the residents of the City of Liberty, the operations of which are financed by user
charges.

Gas Fund - A proprietary fund used to account for the gas services provided to the residents of
the City of Liberty, the operations of which are financed by user charges.

Garbage Fund - A proprietary fund used to account for the garbage services provided to the
residents of the City of Liberty, the operations of which are financed by user charges.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Accounting, continued

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the City
as a whole. The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. This is the same approach used in the preparation of proprietary fund
financial statements but differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements
are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the
statements for individual funds.

Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds. The accounting and
financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.

Ail governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financials resources
• measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. All governmental funds are accounted for using the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when they become measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
Expenditures, other than interest on long-term debt, are recorded when the liability is incurred.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are
recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

Permits, fines and forfeits, and miscellaneous revenues (except for Investment earnings) are
recorded as revenues when received because they are generally not measurable until actually
received. Investment earnings are recorded when earned since they are measurable and
available in ail funds.

D. Budgeting

The City follows the procedures established pursuant to Section 91A.030 of the Kentucky
Revised Statutes in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements. Budgets
for all funds areadopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

E. Internal Balances

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may
result in amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions
are classified as "internal balances". Interfund receivables and payables between funds within
governmental activities and proprietary activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.

F. Revenues and Receivables

Proprietary funds report all revenues and expenses as operating, except interest income, interest
expense, amortization, and capital contributions,
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Fund Balances

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows;

Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable
form or because they are legaliy or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other
governments.

Committed - amounts constrained for a specific purpose by the City using its highest
level of decision making authority. The City Council is the highest level of decision
making authority for the City of Liberty. Commitments may be established, modified, or
rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the City Council.

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. The City has
designated the Mayor to carry the intent of the City Council.

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts.

It is the policy of the City to spend restricted funds first when both restricted and unrestricted
funds are available. Once restricted funds are spent, the City will use committed funds first,
assigned funds second and unassigned funds last.

As of June 30, 2015, fund balances are composed of the following:

General Nonmajor Total
Fund Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

Nonspendable -prepaid expenses $ 7,725 $ - $ 7,725
Restricted:

Road surface repairs - 130,831 130,831
Cemetery fund - 87,984 87,984
Restaurant tax - 96,394 96,394

Unassigned 213.205 ; 213.205
Total fund balances $ 220.930 $ 315.209 $ 536.139
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H. Capital Assets

Under GASB 34, the City of Liberty has elected to not report major infrastructure retroactively.
Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost. Depreciation of capital assets is
provided over theestimated useful lives ofthe respective assets using the straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Infrastructure 20-40 years
Buildings 25-40 years
Improvements 10-20 years
Vehicles, furniture and equipment 5-10 years

I. Use of Estimates

The preparation offinancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires rnanagement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

L. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the County Employees' Retirement System (CERS) and additions to/deductions from
CERS' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
CERS. For this purpose, benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions, are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

J. Other Accounting Policies

General fixed asset purchases are recorded as expenditures in the general fund and special
revenue funds at the time of purchase. Such assets are capitalized at cost in the general fixed
assets group of accounts. Certain improvements including roads, bridges, curbs and gutters,
streets and sidewalks, and drainage systems acquired or constructed before July 1, 2003 have not
been capitalized. Infrastructure assets acquired or constructed after July 1, 2003 have been
capitalized as permitted by GASB 34.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and othercommitments for the
expenditure ofmonies are recorded in order to reserve that portion oftheapplicable appropriation,
is not employed by the City of Liberty.

I

Certificates of deposit are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. All other investments are j
carried at fair value based on quoted market prices. |

I 1

All restricted and unrestricted cash and investments are considered cash for purposes of the |
Statement of Cash Flows.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

K. Management's Review of Subsequent Events

The City has evaluated and considered the need to recognize or disclose subsequent events
through May 2, 2016, which represents the date that these financial statements were available to
be issued. Subsequent events past this date, as they pertain to the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015, have not been evaluated by the City.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Under Kentucky Revised Statute 66.480, the City is allowed to Invest in obligations of the U.S. and of
its agencies, obligations backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. or a U.S. government agency,
obligations of any corporation of the U.S. government, certificates of deposit or other interest-bearing
accounts issued by institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
similarly collateralized institutions, and bonds and securities of states, local governments, or related
agencies in the U.S. rated in one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating
agency.

The City has a formal Investment policy, stating that the provisions of KRS 66.480 will be adhered to in
order to reduce exposure to the following risks:

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
Investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate
changes.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
At June 30, 2015 the City held investments in the following municipal and corporate bonds. Bond
ratings were not available for disclosure.

Municipal Bonds

Clark County Nevada Las Vegas Convention
Illinois Municipal Electric Agency Power Supply System
Illinois State GO Pension

Massachusetts Health and Education Northeast University
Minnesota Financial School Loan Revolving Fund
Walnut California Energy Center

Corporate Bonds

Citigroup Inc Global Sub Note
Citigroup Inc Senior Note
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

2, CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be
able to recover the value of the investment or coilaterai securities that are in the possession of an
outside party.

The City of Liberty's deposits and investments were substantially covered by federal depository
insurance, the Securities Investor Protection Corporation, or by collateral held by the custodial banks
in the City's name. The carrying amount of the City's deposits totaled $1,853,919 and the bank
balances totaled $2,006,442. As of June 30, 2015 $1,860,598 was held as collateral by the custodial
banks in the City's name.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City's investment in a
singie issuer.

The City's investments at June 30, 2015, are as foiiows:

Investment Maturities in Years

1 year or More
Investment Tvne Fair Value less 1-5 6-10 than 10

Certificates of deposit $ 625,427 $ - $ 625,427 $ $
Money market funds 1,786 1,786 - - -

Mutual funds 91,901 91,901 - -

Municipal bonds 102,910 - 51,961 22,639 28,310
Corporate bonds 5.229 5.229 - _

$ 827.253 $ 93.687 $ 682.617 S 22.639 $ 28.310

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Receivables at year end of the City's major individual funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows:

Governmental Funds:

Taxes

Licenses, permits, billings
Intergovernmental

Gross receivables

Less: allowance for uncollectible

Net receivables

Business-Type Activities:
Customer

Less: allowance for uncollectible

Net receivables

Nonmajor
Funds

Governmental

Funds Total

25,944
44,118

9.934

79,996
(3.371)

16,898 $

5.781

22,679

General

Fund

$ 9,046
44,118

4.153

57,317
(3.3711

53,946 $ 22.679 $_ 76.625

Water &

Sewer Fund

$ 141,317
(33.622)

Gas Fund

$ 118,844
(54.864)

Garbage
Fund

53,154
(22.259)

Business-

Type
Activities

Total

313,315
(110.745)

$ 107.695 $ 63.980 $_ 30,895 $_ 202.570
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS

CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

1 Asummary ofcapital asset activity during the fiscal yearfollows:

Balance

June 30, 2014
Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not depreciated:
Land $ 757,851

. ! r.nnctriir.tinn in Proaress 4.000

Additions

$

Deductions

$

Balance

June 30, 2015

$ 757,851
4.000

i 761.851 - - 761.851

Capital assets that are depreciated:
1 Land Improvements $ 700,021
i Buildings and Improvements 1,133,688

Vehicles 695,066
Fqiiipmfint 130,709

i Tntqk 2.659.484

$ 23,997

89,366
9.579

122.942

$
(149,208)

(50,475)
(3.4481

(203.1311

$ 724,018
984,480
733,957
136.840

2.579.295

Total Capital Assets 3.421.335 122:942 (203.1311 3.341.146

1j
•1 Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles

' Equipment
Totals

130,475
380,283
482,508

57,408

1.050.674

36,142
29,538
45,144
14,102

124.926

(31,452)
(42,114)

(1.9251

(75.4911

166,617
378,369
485,538

69.585

1.100.109

Capital assets, net S. 2 370.661 3; (1.9841 $ (127.6401 2.241.037

Balance

June 30,2014 Additions Deductions

Balance

June 30, 2015

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets not depreciated:

Land

Construction in Progress
Totals

104,272
18.000

122.272

Capital assets that are depreciated:
Water Plant $ 13,635,387
Sewer Plant 8,812,813
Gas Lines &Equipment 687,274
Garbage Equipment 276.082
Totals 23.411.556

Total Capital Assets

Less Accumulated
Depreciation

Capital Assets, net

23.533.828

9.816.389

3; 18717.439

-25

111.886

111.886

$ 3,800
16,886

20.686

132.572

812.173

$ r679.6011

$ (118,551)
(21,016)
(64,319)

(203.8861

(203.8861

(198.6481

104,272
129.886

234.158

13,520,636
8,808,683

622,955
276.082

23.228.356

23.462.514

10.429.914

$ (5.2381 3; 13.032.600
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2015

4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation Expense was charged to the Governmental functions as follows:

General government $ 65,055
Police 16,027
Fire 41.644

Total Depreciation Expense £ 1?.4 fl?fi

5. SHORT - TERM DEBT

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

During fiscal year 2015 the City of Liberty entered Into a revolving note with Casey County Bank to
finance the City's portion of the Casey County Education and Learning Center. The note bears Interest
at a rate of 2.5% and was paid refinancedwith long-term debt during fiscal year 2015.

The following Is a summary of changes In general short-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2015:

July 1,2014 Additions Retirements June 30,2015
Revolving Note S £ 750.000 £ 1750.0001 £

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES

In February 2013, the Kentucky Bond Corporation Issued Series 2013A Revenue Bonds for the City
In orderto refund all prior outstanding Waterand Sewer Fund revenue bonds. This current refunding
resulted In a difference between the reacqulsitlon price and the net carrying amount of the old debt In
the amount of $25,293. The deferred amount on refunding Is being amortized as a component of
Interest expense over the life of the new bond Issue. The new Issue will reduce debt service
payments by$1,962,456 and has a net economic gain of$731,039. As part of the Issuance, the City
was required to deposit $164,250 In a debt service reserve fund managed by the Kentucky Bond
Corporation. Beginning January 1, 2039, the reserve funds will be used to reduce the City's monthly
payment.

The following is a summary of the revenue bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2015 and
2014:

Outstanding Outstanding
Revenue Bonds and Loans Payable June 30,2015 June 30,2014
Water and Sewer Fund - $5,475,000

Kentucky Bond Corporation -2013A Series
I ' due In monthly installments of $12,917

^ to $21,364 through 2040, Interest at 2.0%-3.4% £ 4.905.000 £ 5.142.083

i During 2010, the City entered Into a lease-purchase agreement with Branch Banking &Trust (BB&T)
, for the purchase ofa garbage truck. The agreement requires semi-annual payments of$18,125 over

a period of 5 years and the Interest rate Is fixed at 3.74%. The total cost of the garbage truck was
$163,924 and the net book value at June 30, 2015 was $68,302. The truck was paid off during the

( i' year ending June 30, 2015.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2015

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES

The following is a summary of the changes in long - term debt for the year ended June 30, 2015:

7
/

July 1, 2014 Additions Retirements June 30, 2015

1
—J

W&S Bond 2013A $ 5,142,083 $ - $ (237,083) $ 4,905,000

Garbage Truck Lease 17.792 - (17.792) ~

!
S 5.159.875 <B - $ (254.8751 S 4.905.000

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding as ofJune 30, 2015, areas
, i

follows:

1

1 June 30 Principal interest

$

Total

2016 $ 221,250 $ 152,058 373,308

1 : 2017 195,000 147,079 342,079

2018 197,083 142,692 339,775

2019 202,083 138,257 340,341

2020 207,083 133,540 340,623
I
i 2021-2025 1,101,250 580,909 1,682,159

1
2026-2030 1,086,667 407,934 1,494,601

2031-2035 948,333 239,049 1,187,382

2036-2040 746.250 79.920 826.170

\

S 4.905.000 $ 2.021.438 $ 6.926.438

n

u

I

1

I

i

!

The water and sewer fund is in compliance with all significant iimitations and restrictions contained in
the bond indenture. As of June 30, 2015 the amount reserved for bond principal and interest
payments was $164,250. Additionally, the City has designated $413,976 as a depreciation reserve.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

During fiscal year 2008 the City of Liberty entered into a lease-purchase agreement with Oshkosh
Capital for the acquisition of a fire truck. The agreement bears interest at a rate of 4.85% and requires
annual payments of $26,860 over a period of 10 years. The total cost of the fire truck was $208,925.
The obligation is reported as general long-term debt.

As of June 30, 2015 the future capital lease payments of the fire truck are summarized as foilows:

Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 24,433 $ 2,427 $ 26,860
2017 25.618 1.242 26.861

% 50.051 $ 3.669 S 53.721
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

8. RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $55,600. At June 30,
2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual results $ - $
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on Plan

investments - 85,600
Changes In proportion and differences between City contributions

and proportionate share of contributions
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 87.992 :
Total S 87.992 $ 85.600

The $87,992 of deferred outflows of resources resulting from the City's contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability In the year ending
June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resouroes and deferred Inflows of
resources will be recognized In pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2016 $ (21,400)
2017 (21,400)
2018 (21,400)
2019 (21,400)

Actuarial Assumptions —The total pension liability In the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods Included in the
measurement:

Inflation 3.50%
Salary Increases 4.50%, average. Including Inflation
Investment rate of return 7.75%, net of Plan Investment expense. Including Inflation

Mortality rates were based on the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table for all retired members and
beneficiaries as of June 30, 2006, and the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table for all other members.

The actuarial assumptions used In the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study forthe period January 1, 2005-June 30, 2008.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

8. RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies
prepared every five years. Severai factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return
assumptions including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected return, net of Investment expense and inflation) were developed by the investment
consultant for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The capital market assumptions developed
by the investment consultant are intended for use over a 10-year horizon and may not be useful in
setting the long-term rate of return for funding pension plans which covers a longer time frame. The
assumption is intended to be a long-term assumption and is not expected to change absent a
significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundamental
change in the market that alters expected returns in future years.

The target allocation and best estimates of nominal real rates of return foreach major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Long-term
Nominal

- Target Real Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return

Domestic Equity 30% 8.45%

international Equity 22% 8.85%

Emerging Market Equity 5% 10.50%

Private Equity 7% 11.25%

Real Estate 5% 7.00%

Core US Fixed Income 10% 5.25%

High Yield US Fixed Income 5% 7.25% •

Non US Fixed income 5% 5.50% ;
Commodities 5% 7.75% 1

TIPS 5% 5.00% j
Cash 1% 3.25% i

Total 100% i

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that local employers would
contribute the actuariaily determined contribution rate of projected compensation over the remaining
29 year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The actuarial determined
contribution rate is adjusted to reflect the phase in of anticipated gains on actuarial value of assets
over the first four years of the projection period. The discount rate does not use a municipal bond
rate.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

8. RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabiiity to Changes in the Discount
Rate - The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.75 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were caicuiated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point iower
(6.75 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.75 percent) than the current rate:

City's
proportionate
share of net

Discount rate pension liability
1% decrease 6.75% $ 1,265,449
Current discount rate 7.75% $ 962,373
1% increase 8.75% $ 693,211

Payabie to the Pension Pian - At June 30, 2015, the City reported a payable of $13,680 for the
outstanding amount of contributions to the pension pian required for the year ended June 30, 2015.
The payabie includes both the pension and insurance contribution aiiocation.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Liberty is exposed to various risks of ioss reiated to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, in addition to
its general liability insurance, the city also carries commercial insurance for ail other risks of ioss such
as worker's compensation and employee health and accident insurance.

10. CONCENTRATIONS

The City has a concentration of revenue in the Water and Sewer Fund and the Gas Fund. One
customer generated approximately 54% of the Water and Sewer Fund's service revenue and 49% of
the accounts receivable at June 30, 2015. in addition, one industrial company generated
approximately 48% of gas service charges and comprised 66% of the accounts receivable balance
reported in the Gas Fund at June 30, 2015.

11. RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Sick Leave

it is the City's policy to not pay out accrued but unused sick leave upon termination or retirement.
During 2015 the City reevaiuated sick leave amounts previously accrued and determined that accrual
was unnecessary. The City restated beginning net position and fund balance to reflect this change.

implementation of new accounting standard GASB Statement No. 68

During 2015 the City implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions, which addresses financial reporting for state and local government employers whose
employees are provided with pensions through pension plans that are covered under Statement No.
67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

11. RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

Implementation of new accounting standard GASB Statement No. 68. continued

The guidance contained in Statement 68 changed how governments calculate and report the costs
and obligations associated with pensions. Under the new standards GASB requires that cost-sharing
governments report a net pension liability, pension expense, and pension reiated deferred inflows and
outflows of resources based on their proportionate share of the coilective amounts for all the
governments in the plan. In addition, GASB requires Statement 68 to be applied retroactively, which
has resulted in a restatement of beginning net position.

Restatements of net position and fund balance are as follows:
2015

Governmental Activities

j , Net position, at beginning ofyear $ 2,563,663
Sick leave accrual adjustment 1,084

' Beginning net pension liability (332,667)
! .... Net position, at beginning of year, as restated $ 2,232,080
J

Business-Tvpe Activities

Water and Sewer

Net position, at beginning of year $ 8,954,446
Sick leave accrual adjustment 9,215
Beginning net pension liability (312,424)

Net position, at beginning of year, as restated $ 8,651,237

Gas

Net position, at beginning of year $ 961,502
Sick leave accrual adjustment 10,474
Beginning net pension liability (276,527)

Net position, at beginning of year, as restated $ 695,449

Garbage
Net position, at beginning of year $ 101,108
Sick leave accrual adjustment 2,117
Beginning net pension iiability (70,755)

Net position, at beginning of year, as restated ^ 32,470

Total Business-Type Activities $ 9,379,156

Total Governmental and Business-Type Activities $ 11.611.236

General Fund

Net position, at beginning of year $ 94,069
Sick leave accrual adjustment 1,084

Net position, at beginning of year, as restated 2

-33-



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON

GENERAL FUND

for the year ended June 30, 2015

Enacted Amended

Budget Budget Actual Variance

Taxes

Property taxes & motor vehicle taxes $ 253,000 $ 265,500 $ 271,519 $ 6,019
Payment in lieu of taxes 9,250 9,250 9,706 456

262,250 274,750 281,225 6,475

Licenses and permits
City stickers 13,000 4,900 4,917 17

Franchise fees 70,000 69,000 76,016 7,016

Insurance premiums 210,000 231,000 233,844 2,844
Building permits 2,000 600 595 (5)

295,000 305,500 315,372 9,872

Fines and forfeitures

Parking Tickets/Arrest Fees 1,600 1,000 1,240 240

1,600 1,000 1,240 240

intergovernmental
Base court revenue 11,000 9,700 9,287 ' (413)
Police incentive pay 14,500 15,500 16,279 779

Local economic assistance 2,300 2,900 2,455 (445)

Police grant 36,196 36,196 36,196 -

Other grants 10,500 13,000 13,336 336

Fire equipment grant 8,250 8,250 11,450 3,200

82,746 85,546 89,003 3,457

Charges for service
Fishing permits 1,200 1,200 1,455 255

Accident reports 1,000 1,400 1,345 (55)

2,200 2,600 2,800 200

Other revenues

Interest income 1,200 1,200 1,386 186

Management fees 135,000 135,000 135,000 -

Other revenues 28,500 36,425 47,707 11,282

164,700 172,625 184,093 11,468

Other Financing Sources

Transfers in, net 174,000 230,000 256,689 26,689

Sale of asset - 140,000 144,500 144,557 57

Note proceeds - 750,000 850,000 100,000

Total Revenue and Other Financing Sources $ 1,122,496 $ 1,966,521 1 2,124,979 $ 158,458
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON
GENERAL FUND

for the year ended June 30, 2015

Enacted Amended

Budget Budget Actual Variance

General Government

Salaries $ 108,844 $ 113,000 $ 111,460 $ (1,540)
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 31,299 31,900 30,770 (1,130)

KY ASAP grant 10,500 13,000 13,469 469

Planning and zoning expenses 6,000 5,500 5,403 (97)

Professional services 10,000 19,250 18,315 (935)

Utilities 10,000 8,000 8,155 155

Office supplies 3,400 2,500 7,075 4,575

Insurance 23,000 24,200 25,772 1,572

Travel/lodging 4,000 1,000 677 (323)

Lake Liberty expenses 1,000 3,000 5,371 2,371

Postage 1,400 100 729 629

Dues and subscriptions -
250 250 -

Parks and recreation 30,000 13,000 14,253 1,253

Education center 193,155 1,015,000 1,014,909 (91)

Fireworks 19,000 18,500 18,500 -

Other expenses 22,000 20,710 14,329 (6,381)

473,598 1,288,910 1,289,437 527

Public Safety - Police
Salaries 194,400 215,700 198,666 (17,034)

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 72,683 91,250 91,204 (46)

Motor fuels 18,000 16,000 15,001 (999)

Utilities 4,000 4,100 4,140 40

Equipment 8,000 10,100 12,065 1,965

Vehicle repairs 5,000 3,100 2,774 (326)

Uniforms 2,000 2,100 2,100 -

Insurance 23,000 22,000 21,781 (219)

Travel and lodging - - - -

Miscellaneous 4,500 3,800 4,208 408

331,583 368,150 351,939 (16,211)

Public Safety - Fire
Labor 44,400 53,880 54,000 120

Repairs and maintenance 2,000 13,000 13,875 875

Equipment 15,000 13,000 14,051 1,051

Utilities 8,400 9,700 9,827 127

Insurance 8,000 7,500 7,453 (47)

Motor fuel 3,000 3,000 2,812 (188)

Miscellaneous 3,000 10,200 12,204 2,004

83,800 110,280 114,222 3,942
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON

GENERAL FUND

for the year ended June 30, 2015

Enacted Amended

Budget Budget Actual Variance

Street Department
Street repairs $ 10,000 $ 1,000 $ 955 $ (45)
Repairs and maintenance 2,000 6,850 6,836 (14)
Utilities 50,000 55,000 53,739 (1,261)
Supplies 1,500 4,600 4,802 202

insurance 2,300 - - -

65,800 67,450 66,332 (1,118)

Capital Outlay 90,811 96,730 122,941 26,211

Debt Service 35.110 34.918 40,831 5,913

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,080,702 1,966,438 1,985,702 19,264

Other Financing Use
Bond expense - - 13,500 13,500

$ 1,080,702 $ 1,966,438 $ 1,999,202 $ 32,764

Note 1: The Cityfailed to amend the budget for $30,000 of expenditures, approved by Council, for repairs to the fire truck.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF

PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
Last Two Fiscal Years

2015 2014

City's proportion of the net pension liability 0.03% 0.03%
City's proportionate share of the net pension

liability (asset) $ 962,373 $ 1,085,805
City's covered employee payroll $ 676,346 $ 671,150
City's share of the net pension liability (asset) as a

percentage of its covered employee payroll 142.29% 161.78%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability 66.80% 61.22%

Notes:

Therewereno changes in benefit terms, size or composition ofthe population covered by the benefit
terms, or the assumptions used in the last two fiscal years.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Three Fiscal Years

2015

$ 87,992 $

$ 87,992 $_

$ $

2014

93,431 $

93,431 $

$

2013

80,490

80,490

Contractually required employer
contribution

Contributions relative to contractually
required employer contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

City's covered employee payroll
Employer contributions as a percentage

of covered-employee payroll

$ 676,346 $ 671,150 $ 637,796

13.01% 13.92% 12.62%

Notes:

There were no changes in benefit terms, size or composition of the population covered by the benefit
terms, or the assumptions used In the last two fiscal years.

Contractually required employer contributions exclude the portion of contributions paid to CERS but
allocated to the insurance fund of the CERS. The above contributions only Include those contributions
allocated directly to the CERS pension fund.
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ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Receivables, net
Due from other funds

CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2015

Cemetery
Fund

$ 35,573
57,197

Municipal
Road Aid

Fund

5,781
125,050

Restaurant

Tax

Fund

$ 79,496

16,898

Total

Governmental

Funds

115,069
57,197
22,679

125,050

Total assets

LIABiLITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balances

$ 92,770 $ 130,831 $ 96,394 $ 319,995

$ 4,786 $ 4,786

4,786 4,786

87,984 130,831 96,394 315,209

$ 92,770 $ 130,831 $ 96,394 $ 319,995
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

for the year ended June 30, 2015

Cemetery
Fund

4,085

4,085

1,592

1,592

2,493

2,493

85,491

Municipal
Road Aid

Fund

$
47,964

47,964

78,577

78,577

(30,613)

(30,613)

161,444

Restaurant

Tax

Fund

$ 96,394

96,394

96,394

96,394

Total

$ 96,394
47,964

4,085

148,443

1,592

78,577

80,169

68,274

68,274

246,935

REVENUES

Taxes

Intergovernmental
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government

Streets department

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in (out)

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances-beginning

Fund balances-ending $ 87,984 $ 130,831 $ 96,394 $ 315,209
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

WATER AND SEWER PROPRIETARY FUND
for the year ended June 30, 2015

WATER SEWER TOTAL

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for service $ 802,734 $ 323,504 $ 1,126,238

802,734 323,504 1,126,238

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 183,542 33,700 217,242
Casual labor 5,316 5,638 10,954
Payroll taxes 13,415 2,496 15,911
Retirement 23,478 4,524 28,002
Uniforms and laundry 4,525 3,325 7,850
Maintenance and repairs 206,798 73,331 280,129
Motor fuel 6,118 5,172 11,290
Office expense and postage 3,389 2,701 6,090
Legal and professional 12,396 14,722 27,118
Utilities 53,663 51,285 104,948
Insurance 64,080 22,787 86,867
Sludge hauling - 7,222 7,222
Pretreatment expenses - 18,345 18,345
Management fees 32,714 10,286 43,000
Other expense 11,501 6,201 17,702
Amortization - - _

Depreciation 480,779 289,036 769,815

1,101,714 550,771 1,652,485

OPERATING INCOME $ (298,980) $ (227,267) $ (526,247)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

; OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
J I BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

, i IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

I Mayor and the City Council
- j City of Liberty

' Liberty, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
! America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
i issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental

activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Liberty, Kentucky, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the

' I financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Liberty, Kentucky's basic financial statements
and have Issued our report thereon dated May 2, 2016.

i I Internal Control over Financial Reporting
J

' i In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Liberty,
Kentucky's internal control overfinancial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that

i i are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
: I statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Liberty,

' Kentucky's Internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
, Liberty, Kentucky's Internal control.

i I A deficiency in internai control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a

i ' combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
i I misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a

timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, of a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that Is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

j i with governance.
Our consideration of internai control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this

i . section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internai control that might be material
j i weaknesses orsignificant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses orsignificant deficiencies may
L • exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies

in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did Identify certain deficiencies in
. Internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses that we consider to
I I be a significant deficiency (2015-001).
I

Compliance and Other Matters

i As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Liberty, Kentucky's financial
; " statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain

provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an

j I opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
I express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters

that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the
accompanying schedule offindings and responses as items (2015-001).

RFH, PLLC • 300WestVineStreet, Suite800 • Lexington, Kentucky 40507-1812
Phone: 859-231-1800 • Fax: 859-422-1800 • Toll-Free: 1-800-342-7299 wwwrfhcpas.com



City of Liberty, Kentucky's Response to Findings

City of Liberty, Kentucky's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Liberty, Kentucky's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on It.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose ofthis report is solely to describe the scope ofour testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integrai part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

mt
RFH,PLLC
May 2, 2016
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

for the year ended June 30, 2015

#2015-001 - Personnel Pay and Classification Plan

Cause;

KRS 83A.070 requires the City to fix the compensation of city employees in accordance with a personnel
and pay classification plan which shall be adopted by ordinance. The City failed to utilize a personnel pay
and classification plan during 2015. In addition, the City's written personnel policies appear to be out
dated resulting in various personnel related matters noted in the policy to vary from actual practice.

Effect:

The City failed to properly comply with KRS 83A.070 and the City has failed to have proper
documentation on certain personnel related policies.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City implement a personnel and pay classification plan in accordance with KRS
83A.070. Furthermore, we recommend that the City review current personnel policies and compare the
policies to actual practice and update or modify the formal written personnel policy handbook.

Response:
The City of Liberty has been working on and will continue updating the personnel policies and procedures.
The updated plan will include a pay classification plan. Once the update is approved, the city will followail
policies within the personnel handbook. The city will also strive to have proper documentation on all
personnel related policies.
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City of Liberty, Kentucky

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Our discussion and analysis of the Cityof Liberty'sfinancial performance provides an overview of
the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. Please read in conjunction
with the auditor's report on page 9-10 and the City's financial statements, which begin on page
11.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

• The City's net position decreased in the governmental activities and decreased in the
business-type activities. The net position of the governmental activities decreased by
$29,742, and the net position of the business-type activities decreased to $10,017,056,
which was a 5.6 percent decrease from the previous year.

• In the City's governmental activities, revenues decreased by $46,256, or 5.2 percent, and
expenses increased by 11.7 percent to $1,032,097. In the business-type activities,
revenues decreased to $2,730,315 which is an decrease of 9.8 percent, while expenses
increased by 1.7 percent to $3,175,534.

OVERVIEW OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of the management's discussion and analysis report, the independent
auditors' report, the basic financial statements of the City, and the independent auditors' report on
compliance. The financial statements also include notes that explain in more detail some of the
information in the financial statements.

The City's financial statements now present two kinds of statements, each with a different
snapshot of the City'sfinances. The focus is both the City as a whole (government-wide) and the
fund financial statements. The government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and
short-term information about the City's overall financial status. The fund financial statements
focus on the individual funds of the City, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements. Both perspectives (government-wide and fund) allow the user to
address relevant questions, broaden the basis of comparison (year to year or government to
government) and enhance the City's accountability.
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GOVERNMENT - WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. One of the most important questions
asked about the City's finances is "Is the City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of this
year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information
about the City's activities in a way that will help answer this question. These statements include
all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenditures are
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the net position of the City and the changes in them. One can think
of the City's net position—^the difference between assets and liabilities—as one way to measure
financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position
are an indicator of whether its financial health or position is improving or deteriorating. However,
one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions,
population growth, changes in property tax rates or valuation, infrastructure asset condition, and
new or changed government legislation.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds
of activities:

Governmental activities—Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including general
government administration, police, fire, dispatch, streets, sanitation and parks. Property taxes,
licenses and permits, and grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type activities—^The Citycollects fees from customers to cover the costs of the services,
which includes gas, water, sewer and garbage.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Traditional users of government financial statements will find the fund financial statement
presentation more familiar. The focus is now on the City's funds. The fund financial statements
provide more information about the City's funds and not the City as a whole.

The City has two kinds of funds:

Governmental Fund—Most of the City's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets, that can readily be converted to cash, flow in
and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term viewthat helps the reader determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance the City's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-
term focus of the government-widestatements, additional information is provided at the bottom of
the governmental funds statement that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

Proprietary Fund—Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds.
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NET POSITION

Our analysis begins with a summary of the City's Statement of Net Position, which is presented
on Table A-1 followed by an explanation of the results. Changes in net position are presented in
Table A-2, which is also followed by an explanation of the results.

Table A-1

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Business-type Total Primary

Activities Activities Government

FY2014 FY2013 FY2014 FY2013 FY 2014 FY2013

Current and Other Assets $ 389,533 $ 363,493 $ 1,759,241 $ 2,078,553 $ 2,148,774 $ 2,442,046

Capital Assets 2,370,662 2,372,927 13,717,439 14,344,258 16,088,101 16,717,185

Deferred Outflows of Resources _ _ 24,252 25,033 24,252 25,033

Total Assets 2,760,195 2,736,420 15,500,932 16,447,844 18,261,127 19,184,264

Long-Term Debt Outstanding 118,779 73,353 4,905,000 5,159,876 5,023,779 5,233,229

Current Liabilities 77,753 69,662 578,876 673,372 656,629 743,034

Total Liabilities 196,532 143,015 5,483,876 5,833,248 5,680,408 5,976,263

Net Position;

Invested in Capital Assets,

net of related debt 2,222,659 2,270,033 8,581,816 8,927,342 10,804,475 11,197,375

Restricted 246,935 241,751 164,250 164,250 411,185 406,001

Unrestricted 94,069 81,621 1,270,990 1,523,004 1,365,059 1,604,625

Total Net Position $ 2,563,663 $ 2,593,405 $ 10,017,056 $ 10,614,596 $ 12,580,719 $ 13,208,001

The net position of the City's governmental activities decreased from $2,593,405 in 2013 to
$2,563,663 in 2014, which is a 1.1% decrease. The net position of the business-type activities
decreased from $10,614,596 to $10,017,056 in 2014, which is a 5.6 percent decrease. The net
position from one activity generally cannot be used to make up for any deficits in the other
activities.
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NET POSITION, continued

Table A-2

Condensed Statement of Activities

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities

Total Primary

Government

FY2014 FY 2013 FY2014 FY2013 FY2014 FY2013

Revenues

Proaram Revenues

Charges for Service $ 2,840 $ 2,681 $ 2,699,072 $ 2,479,545 $ 2,701,912 $ 2,482,226

Operating Grants &

i Contributions 90,608 160,732 - - 90,608 160,732

Capital Grants &

Contributions 8,250 8,250 6,631 521,530 14,881 529,780

General Revenue - -

Taxes 285,476 266,264 - - 265,476 266,264

License fees 259,568 264,044 - - 259,568 264,044

Permits 20,439 24,125 - - 20,439 24,125

Other Grants and

~ Contributions 2,054 2,511 - 2,054 2,511

Investment Earnings 7,307 5,805 24,608 25,353 31,915 31,158

Management fees 135,000 135,000 - - 135,000 135,000

' Miscellaneous 52,297 20,683 404 - 52,701 20,683

Total Revenue 843,839 890,095 2,730,715 3,026,428 3,574,554 3,916,523

Program Expenses

j General Government 426,399 314,361 - - 426,399 314,361

Public Safety - Police 375,133 345,210 - - 375,133 345,210

Public Safety - Fire 140,251 119,094 - - 140,251 119,094

Streets Department 85,999 139,215 - - 85,999 139,215

Interest on Long-term Debt 4,315 6,096 - - 4,315 6,096

Utility - - 3,175,534 3,121,012 3,175,534 3,121,012

Total Program Expenses 1,032,097 923,976 3,175,534 3,121,012 4,207,631 4,044,988

Other Changes

1 Transfers 156,113 (79,771) (156,113) 79,771 - -

Gain (loss) on sale of assets 2,403 3,720 3,392 - 5,795 3,720

Total Other Changes 158,516 (76,051) (152,721) 79,771 5,795 3,720

Change In Net Position $ (29,742) $(109,932) $ (597,540) $ (14,813) $ (627,282) $ (124,745)

The City's total revenue decreased by 8.7 percent and the total cost of all programs reflected an
increase of 4.0 percent. On the following page is a more in-depth description of the revenues and
expenses of the governmental and business-type activities.
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GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Next, the City analyzes the governmental activities and the changes In those activities, which Is
presented In Table A-3.

Table A-3

Condensed Governmental Activities - Revenues & Expenditures

FY 2014 FY2013 Chanae

Taxes $ 265,476 $ 266,264 $ (788)

Licenses and permits 280,007 288,169 (8,162)

Fines and Forfeits 1,175 1,615 (440)

Intergovernmental 100,912 171,493 (70,581)

Charges for Services 2,840 2,681 159

Other Revenues 193,429 159,873 33,556

Total Revenues 843,839 890,095 (46,256)

General Government $ 359,564 $ 251,591 $ 107,973

Public Safety 459,018 413,567 45,451

Streets Department 85,999 139,215 (53,216)

Capital Outlay 127,595 68,185 59,410

Debt Service 33,857 34,395 (538)

Total Expenditures 1,066,033 906,953 159,080

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

over Expenditures $ (222,194) $ (16,858) $ (205,336)

Revenues for the City's governmental activities decreased by 5.2 percent, while total
expenditures Increased by 17.5 percent. Governmental activities (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) Increased by $205,336. The City's major
sources of revenue In the governmental activities are other revenue (22.9 percent), licenses and
permits (33.2 percent), taxes (31.5 percent) and Intergovernmental (12.0 percent). These
revenue sources decreased 5.2 percent In 2014. The major change In expenditures In the
governmental activities was a Increase In general government of $107,973 which Is due to the
support of the education center by the City during 2014.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Looking at the business-type activities, revenues for the City decreased to $2,270,315, or 9.8
percent, while total expenses Increased 1.7 percent. The decrease of revenues combined with
the Increase of expenses and Increase In other changes Increased the change In net position to
($597,540). The City's major source of revenue In the business-type activities Is charges for
services, which Increased to $2,699,072. This revenue source makes up 98.9 percent of total
revenues. The capital grants and contributions Included grants for the water and sewer system
expansion as discussed on page 7.
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BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the City budget several times. These
amendments were made shortly after the beginning of the year to reflect events that may occur.
The budget contains proposed expenditures and expected revenues. A comparison of the final
amended budget to actual amounts is presented in the table below (Tables A-4 & 5).

Table A-4

Condensed Governmental Activities - Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Budget Actual Variance

Taxes 262,250 $ 265,476 $ 3,226

Licenses and permits 292,700 280,007 (12,693)

Fines and Forfeitures 1,600 1,175 (425)

Intergovernmental 50,550 50,745 195

Charges for Services 3,050 2,840 (210)

Other Revenues 168,700 186,465 17,765

Transfers in (out) 174,000 192,513 18,513

Note Proceeds - 74,650 74,650

Sale of Asset - 9,063 9,063

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources $ 952,850 $1,062,934 $ 110,084

Table A-5

Condensed Governmental Activities - Expenditures

General Government

Public Safety

Streets Department

Debt Service

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Budget

319,582

448,218

83,800

35,110

58,600

$ 945,310

Actual

355,347

459,018

74,669

33,857

127,595

$1,050,486

Variance

35,765

10,800

(9,131)

(1.253)

68,995

$

$ 105,176

The City budgeted for a total of $952,850 in revenues and other financing sources for 2014, but
ended up having revenues of $1,062,934, which put the City over the revenue budget by
$110,084. A total of $945,310 was budgeted for expenses, and actual expenditures totaled
$1,050,486 at the end of 2014. The City was over budget on the expenses by $105,176, as
detailed above.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

As discussed in Table A-6, the City has a total of $26,955,163 invested in a broad range of capital
assets, including police and fire equipment and vehicles, buildings, land, infrastructure assets,
and water and sewer lines. This amount represents a 0.5 percent increase from last year's total
investment of $26,812,004.

The major capital additions in the governmental activities were a fire ladder truck for $75,150, fire
department equipment for $9,070, a leaf truck for $7,700 and a parking lot for $18,350. The
business-type activities major capital additions were updates to the maintenance building for
$18,637, a new truck for $13,992, a new gas regulator for $19,600, two new fire hydrants for
$5,954, and various sewer equipment for $30,283.

Table A-6

Capital Assets at Year End Without Depreciation

Governmental

Activities

Business-type

Activities

Land & Improvements

Construction in Progress

Buildings & Improvements

Vehicles & Equipment

Water & Sewer System

Total Capital Assets

FY2014

$1,457,872

4,000

1,133,688

825,775

FY2013 FY2014

$1,427,397 $

1,132,488

785,796

18,000

23,515,828

$3,421,335 $3,345,681 $ 23,533,828

FY2013

18,000

23,448,323

$23,466,323

Total Primary

Government

FY2014

$ 1,457,872

22,000

1,133,688

825,775

23,515,828

$ 26,955,163

FY2013

$ 1,427,397

18,000

1,132,488

785,796

23,448,323

$ 26,812,004

DEBT

This year the City has $5,307,878 in debt, a 4.3 percent decrease from last year's total of
$5,544,843. The City issued Series 2013A Revenue Bonds to refund all prior outstanding Water
and Sewer Fund revenue bonds for $5,475,000.
Table A-7

Debt Outstanding at Year End

Governmental

Activities

FY 2014 FY 2013

Business-type

Activities

FY 2014 FY2013

Total Primary

Government

FY 2014 FY 2013

Note Payable $ 148,003 $ 102,894 $ 17,792 $ 52,404 $ 165,795 $ 155,298
Revenue Bond Payable ^ i 5.142.083 5.389.545 5,142,083 5,389,545

Total DebtOutstanding $ 148,003 $ 102,894 $ 5,159,875 $ 5,441,949 $ 5,307,878 $ 5,544,843
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City's elected officialsconsider many factors when setting the fiscal year 2015 budget. Some
of the factors are the local economy, expected grant money, and anticipated tax revenue.

CONTACTING JHE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens of the City, taxpayers, customers,
investors and creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's
accountability for the money it receives. Ifyou have questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact Ms. Sharleen Rodgers, City Clerk, at P.O. Box 127, Liberty, KY
42539.
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rfhRay, Foley Hensley & Company, pllc
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants . i

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Mayor and the City Council
City of Liberty
Liberty, Kentucky

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Liberty, Kentucky, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectivelycomprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposeof expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We t)elieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Liberty, Kentucky, as of June 30, 2014, and
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance withaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

230 Lexington Green Circle,Suite 600 • Lexington,Kentucky 40503-3326
Phone:859-231-1800 • Fax:859-422-1800 •ToU-Free: 1-800-342-7299

www.rfhco.com

Members American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Kentucky Society of Certified Public Accountants



other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 1 through 8 and 30 through 32
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Liberty, Kentucky's basic financiai statements. The combining nonmajor
governmental fund financial statements and the combining statement of water and sewer fund operating
revenues and expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements and the combining statement of water
and sewer fund operating revenues and expenses are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financiai statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements and the combining statement of water
and sewer fund operating revenues and expenses are fairly stated in ali material respects in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

Prior-Year Comparative Information

We have previously audited the City's 2013 financial statements, and we expressed unmodified audit
opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information in our report dated April 25, 2014. in our
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2013, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived, except for the effects of the restatement of net position described in Note 10.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December
29, 2014, on our consideration of the City of Liberty, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compiiance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Liberty,
Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ray, Foley, Hensley and Company, PLLC
December 29, 2014
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2014

Primary Governnnent

Governmental Buslness-type 2013

Activities Activities Total Totals

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash $ 215,494 $ 525,348 $ 740,842 $ 815,969
Investments 125,016 862,285 987,301 1,150,718
Receivables (net) 56,269 187,125 243,394 214,019
Interest receivable 65 3,239 3,304 3,677
Other assets 7,500 - 7,500 20,349
Grant receivable - 2,183 2,183 73,064
Internal balances (14,811) 14,811 - -

Total current assets 389,533 1,594,991 1,984,524 2,277,796

Noncurrent assets

Restricted assets

Cash - 164,250 164,250 164,250

Capital assets
Construction in progress 4,000 18,000 22,000 18,000

Land and improvements 757,851 104,272 862,123 862,123

Utility systems, net - 13,595,167 13,595,167 14,221,986
Depreciable buildings, property.
and equipment, net 1,608,811 - 1,608,811 1,615,076

Total noncurrent assets 2,370,662 13,881,689 16,252,351 16,881,435

Total assets 2,760,195 15,476,680 18,236,875 19,159,231

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Defeasance on refunding - 24,252 24,252 25,033

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 2,760,195 $ 15,500,932 $ 18,261,127 $ 19,184,264

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 36,530 $ 87,389 $ 123,919 $ 162,830

Accounts payable-construction - - - 25,000

Accrued liabilities 11,999 69,388 81,387 74,148

Customer deposits - 154,809 154,809 154,689

Accnjed interest payable - 12,415 12,415 14,753

Current portion of long-term
obligations 29,224 254,875 284,099 311,614

Total current liabilities 77,753 578,876 656,629 743,034

Noncurrent liabilities

Noncurrent portion of long-term
obligations 118,779 4,905,000 5,023,779 5,233,229

Total liabilities 196,532 5,483,876 5,680,408 5,976,263

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 2,222,659 8,581,816 10,804,475 11,197,375

Restricted for other purposes 246,935 164,250 411,185 406,001

Unrestricted 94,069 1,270,990 1,365,059 1,604,625

Total net position 2,563,663 10,017,056 12,580,719 13,208,001

Total liabilities and net position $ 2,760,195 $ 15,500,932 $ 18,261,127 $ 19,184,264

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

for the year ended June 30, 2014

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Govemmentai Business-type 2013

Functions/Proarams Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Totals

Primary government
Governmental activities

Generai government $ 426,399 $ 1,730 $ 23,093 $ $ (401,576) $ $ (401,576) $ (287,097)
Public safety-Poiice 375,133 1,110 17,348 - (356,675) - (356,675) (329,291)
Public safety-Fire 140,251 - 8,250 (132,001) - (132,001) (110,844)
Street department 85,999 50,167 - (35,832) - (35,832) (18,985)
interest on long-term debt 4,315 - - (4,315) - (4,315) (6,096)

Total govemmentai
activities 1,032,097 2,840 90,608 8,250 (930,399) - (930,399) (752,313)

Business type activities
Utility 3,175,534 2,699,072 6,631 - (469,831) (469,831) (119,937)

Total business-type
activities 3,175,534 2,699,072 6,631 - (469,831) (469,831) (119,937)

Total primary govemment $ 4,207,831 $ 2,701,912 $ 90,608 $ 14,881 (930,399) (469,831) (1,400,230) (872,250)

General revenues

Taxes

Property taxes, levied for generai purposes 265,476 - 265,476 266,264

License fee

Franchise 77,981 - 77,981 71,382

insurance premiums 181,587 - 181,587 192,662

Pemiits

Building 2,195 - 2,195 3,030

City Stickers 18,244 - 18,244 21,095

Fines and forfeitures 1,175 - 1,175 1,615

Grants and contributions

not restricted to specific programs 2,054 - 2,054 2,511

investment earnings 7,307 24,608 31,915 31,158

Management fees 135,000 - 135,000 135,000

Miscellaneous 51,122 404 51,526 19,068

Total general revenues 742,141 25,012 767,153 743,785

Gain (loss) on sale of assets 2,403 3,392 5,795 3,720

Transfers 156,113 (156,113)
- -

Total general revenues
and transfers 900,557 (127,709) 772,948 747,505

Change in Net Position (29,742) (597,540) (627,282) (124,745)

Net position-beginning, as restated 2.593.405 10,614,596 13,208,001 13,332,746

NET POSITION-ENDING $ 2,563,663 $ 10,017,056 $12,580,719 $13,208,001

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements
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ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Receivables (net)
Interest receivable

Other assets

Due from other funds

CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2014

General

Other

Governmental

Funds

183,131
67,102

51,766

65

7,500

4,495

$ 32,363

57,914

4,503

156,941

Total

Governmental

Funds

$ 215,494
125,016

56,269

65

7,500

161,436

2013

Totals

61,315
250,725

50,128
282

20,349

125,111

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payabie
Accrued liabilities

Due to other funds

314,059 $ 251,721 $ 565,780 $ 507,910

36,530 $
11,999

171,461

219,990

7,500

86,569

4,786

4,786

246,935

36,530
11,999

176,247

224,776

7,500
246,935

86,569

28,040
12,081

144,417

184,538

20,349

241,751
250,000

Total liabilities

Fund balances

Nonspendabie
Restricted

Committed

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

94,069 246,935 341,004 323,372

$ 314,059 $ 251,721 $ 565,780 $ 507,910

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because

Fund balances represented above
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and therefore are not

reported in the funds.
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payabie, are not due

and payabie in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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$ 341,004 $ 323,372

2,370,662 2,372,927

(148,003) (102,894)

$ 2,563,663 $ 2,593,405



CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

for the year ended June 30, 2014

Other Total

Governmental Governmental 2013

General Funds Funds Totals

REVENUES

Taxes $ 265,476 $ $ 265,476 $ 266,264

Licenses and permits 280,007 - 280,007 288,169

Fines and forfeits 1,175 - 1,175 1,615

Intergovernmental 50,745 50,167 100,912 171,493

Charges for service 2,840 - 2,840 2,681

Other revenues 186,465 6,964 193,429 159,873

Total revenues 786,708 57,131 843,839 890,095

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government 355,347 4,217 359,564 251,591

Public safety-Police 359,371 - 359,371 327,451

Public safety-Fire 99,647 - 99,647 86,116

Streets department 74,669 11,330 85,999 139,215

Capital outlay 127,595 -
127,595 68,185

Debt service 33,857 - 33,857 34,395

Total expenditures 1,050,486 15,547 1,066,033 906,953

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures (263,778) 41,584 (222,194) (16,858)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of assets 9,063 - 9,063 3,720

Note proceeds 74,650 -
74,650 -

Transfers In (out) 192,513 (36,400) 156,113 (79,771)

Total other financing sources and uses 276,226 (36,400) 239,826 (76,051)

Net change in fund balances 12,448 5,184 17,632 (92,909)

Fund balances-beginning 81,621 241,751 323,372 416,281

FUND BALANCES-ENDING $ 94,069 $ 246,935 $ 341,004 L 323,372

Reconcllatlon to government-wrldechange In net position:
Net change In fund balances $ 17,632 $ (92,909)

less: proceeds from sale of asset (9,063) -

add: capital outlay expenditures capitalized 127,595 68,185

add: debt service expenditures 33,857 34,395

add: gain on disposal of capital assets 2,403 -

less: depreciation on governmental activities assets (123,201) (113,507)

less: note proceeds (74,650) -

less: Interest on long term debt (4,315) (6,096)

Change In net position Governmental Activities $ (29,742) $ (109,932)

The accompanying notes are an Integral
part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2014

Business-type Activities

Water & Sewer Gas Garbage 2014 2013

Fund Fund Fund Total Totals

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash $ 525,348 $ $ $ 525,348 $ 754,654

Investments 53,370 801,902 7,013 862,285 899,993

Receivables (net) 98,303 57,309 31,513 187,125 163,891

Interest receivable 63 3,176 - 3,239 3,395

Grant receivable 2,183 - - 2,183 73,064

Due from other funds 12,418 1,393 1,000 14,811 19,306

Total current assets 691,685 863,780 39,526 1,594,991 1,914,303

Noncurrent assets

Restricted assets

Cash 164,250 - - 164,250 164,250

Capital assets;
Construction In progress 18,000 - - 18,000 18,000

Land 66,872 37,400 - 104,272 104,272

Depreciable utility fixed assets 22,448,200 687,274 276,082 23,411,556 23,344,051

Less accumulated depreciation (9,156,044) (484,282) (176,063) (9,816,389) (9,122,065)

Total noncurrent assets 13,541,278 240,392 100,019 13,881,689 14,508,508

Total assets 14,232,963 1,104,172 139,545 15,476,680 16,422,811

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Defeasance on refunding 24,252 - - 24,252 25,033

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 14,257,215 $ 1,104,172 $ 139,545 $ 15,500,932 $ 16,447,844

LiABILlTiES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 41,867 $ 30,377 $ 15,145 $ 87,389 $ 134,790

Accounts payable-construction - - - - 25,000

Accrued liabilities 33,186 30,972 5,230 69,388 62,067

Customer deposits 73,488 81,321 - 154,809 154,689

Accrued interest payable 12,145 - 270 12,415 14,753

Current portion of long-term obligations 237,083 - 17,792 254,875 282,073

Total current liabilities 397,769 142,670 38,437 578,876 673,372

Noncurrent liabilities

Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 4,905,000 - - 4,905,000 5,159,876

Total noncurrent liabilities 4,905,000 4,905,000 5,159,876

Total liabilities 5,302,769 142,670 38,437 5,483,876 5,833,248

NET POSITION

Net Investment In capital assets 8,259,197 240,392 82,227 8,581,816 8,927,342

Restricted for

Debt service 164,250 - - 164,250 164,250

Unrestricted 530,999 721,110 18,881 1,270,990 1,523,004

Total net position 8,954,446 961,502 101,108 10,017,056 10,614,596

Total liabilities and net position $ 14,257,215 $ 1,104,172 $ _139,5« $ 15,500,932 i 16,447,844

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

for the year ended June 30, 2014

Business-type Activities
Water & Gas Garbage 2014 2013

Sewer Fund Fund Fund Total Totals

Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 1,134,357 $ 1,192,675 $ 372,040 $ 2,699,072 $ 2,479,545

Total operating revenues 1,134,357 1,192,675 372,040 2,699,072 2,479,545

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages 217,331 174,502 89,241 481,074 466,214
Casual labor 32,722 16,451 6,207 55,380 43,402

Gas purchases - 515,017 - 515,017 363,284

Payroll taxes 15,625 12,709 6,749 35,083 33,116

Retirement 38,464 32,352 15,546 86,362 86,189

Uniforms and laundry 13,432 6,655 6,534 26,621 17,677

Maintenance and repairs 316,305 51,190 16,417 383,912 432,141

Truck expense - - 17,644 17,644 16,917

Motor fuel 20,399 13,434 19,652 53,485 52,799

Office expense and postage 8,168 3,229 1,453 12,850 11,662

Legal and professional 29,406 5,625 5,625 40,656 43,931

Utilities 116,349 7,819 62 124,230 120,032

Insurance 79,498 47,726 41,593 168,817 163,189

Dump expense - - 106,972 106,972 98,146

Sludge hauling - - - - 35,201

Pretreatment expenses 15,938 - - 15,938 15,893

Management fees 43,000 66,000 26,000 135,000 135,000

Other expense 22,797 5,283 2,545 30,625 27,966

Depreciation 689,916 13,786 17,532 721,234 729,641

Total operating expenses 1,659,350 971,778 379,772 3,010,900 2,892,400

Operating income (loss) (524,993) 220,897 (7,732) (311,828) (412,855)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment earnings 5,911 18,527 170 24,608 25,353

Interest expense (163,520) -
(1,114) (164,634) (228,612)

Other revenues 404 - -
404 -

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 4,150 (758) - 3,392 -

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers (678,048) 238,666 (8,676) (448,058) (616,114)

Capital contributions
Tap fees 4,281 2,350 - 6,631 1,100

Grant revenues - - - - 520,430

Transfers in (out) 254,934 (328,007) (83,040) (156,113) 79,771

Change in net position (418,833) (86,991) (91,716) (597,540) (14,813)

Total net position-beginning, as restated 9,373,279 1,048,493 192,824 10,614,596 10,629,409

TOTAL NET POSITION-ENDING $ 8,954,446 $ 961,502 $ 101,108 $ 10,017,056 $10,614,596

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

for the year ended June 30, 2014

Business-type Activities

Water & Gas Garbage 2014 2013

Sewer Fund Fund Fund Total Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers $ 1,126,346 $1,178,367 $ 371,065 $ 2,675,778 $ 2,505,415

Payments to suppliers (669,581) (651,957) (217,955) (1,539,493) (1,551,306)
Payments for interfund services (payment in lieu of taxes) (43,000) (66,000) (26,000) (135,000) (135,000)
Payments for employee services and benefits (297,459) (237,687) (115,432) (650,578) (619,303)

Net cash provided by operating activities 116,306 222,723 11,678 350,707 199,806

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Bond principal payment (247,462) - (34,612) (282,074) (5,830,340)

Capital contributions 75,566 2,350 - 77,916 845,365

Proceeds from bond/loan issuance - - - - 5,475,000

Proceeds from sale of assets 4,150 - - 4,150 -

Purchases of capital assets (84,581) (32,993) (2,600) (120,174) (917,683)

Interest paid on capital debt (164,552) - (1,639) (166,191) (254,190)

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities (416,879) (30,643) (38,851) (486,373) (681,848)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net operating transfers in (out) 254,934 (328,007) (83,040) (156,113) 79,771

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 254,934 (328,007) (83,040) (156,113) 79,771

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest and dividends 5,958 18,637 170 24,765 27,031

Net cash provided by investing activities 5,958 18,637 170 24,765 27,031

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (39,681) (117,290) (110,043) (267,014) (375,240)

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning of the year 782,649 919,192 117,056 1,818,897 2,194,137

CASH AND CASH EQUiVALENTS-END OF THE YEAR

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities

$ 742,968 $ 801,902 7,013 $ 1.551,883 $ 1,818,897

$ (524,993) $ 220,897 $ (7,732) $ (311,828) $ (412,855)

Depreciation expense 689,916 13,786 17,532 721,234 729,641

Change in assets and liabilities
Receivables, net (8,011) (14,248) (975) (23,234) 25,870

Due from other funds 4,495 - - 4,495 -

Other assets - - - - (202,180)

Accounts and other payabies (51,964) 3,961 542 (47,461) 49,712

Accrued expenses 6,863 (1,673) 2,311 7,501 9,618

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 116,306 $ 222,723 $ 11,678 $ 350,707 $ 199,806

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Noncash capital and related financing activities:

Exchange of capital assets $ 13,992 $ - $ - $ 13,992 $ -

Payabies for capital items, net $ (25,000) $ - $ - $ (25,000) $ (354,117)

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Liberty, Kentucky operates under the City Council form of government and provides the
following services as authorized by its charter: public safety and public works. The accounting policies
of the City of Liberty conform to generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental
units. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies.

A. Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the City of Liberty, Kentucky include the funds, account groups and
entities over which the Mayor and Council exercise significant oversight responsibility. Oversight
responsibility, as defined by Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards, was determined on the basis of the City's ability to significantly
influence operation, select the governing body, participate in fiscal management and the scope of
public service.

The Economic Development Authority of Liberty/Casey County is a joint venture between the City
and the Casey County Fiscal Court and is excluded from the City's financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation

The City's financial statements consist of the following:

Management's discussion and analysis (required supplementary information);
Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements

Fund financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

Government-wide Financiai Statements

The government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities. These statements display information about the City as a whole. The statements
distinguish between governmental and business-type activities of the City. These financial
statements include the financial activities of the City except for fiduciary activities. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely on fees and charges for support. The
government-wide statement of activities reflects costs of government by function for governmental
activities and business-type activities. Program revenues include charges paid by recipient for the
goods or services offered by the program and grants or contributions that are restricted to the
program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues of the City.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the City. The accounts of the City are
organized on the basis of funds each of which is considered to be a separate fiscal and accounting
entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that is
comprised of its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
I I NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

' June 30, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Basis of Presentation, continued

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions are financed. The
governmental fund measurement focus is upon determination of financial position and budgetary
control over revenues and expenditures. Proprietary fund types are used to account for operations
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to business enterprises - where intent of the
governing body is that costs of providing services are to be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges.

The following funds are used by the City of Liberty:

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The general operating fund of the City is used to account for ail financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Cemetery Fund - A special revenue fund used to account for Gienwood cemetery activities.

Municipal Road Aid Fund - A special revenue fund used to account for revenues received
from the Commonwealth of Kentucky under the gasoline tax distribution program.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for the ongoing organizations and activities of the City,
which are similar to those found in private business enterprises. The measurement focus is upon
determination of net income, finjanciai position, and changes in cash flows.

Proprietary funds are established to account for the acquisition, operations and maintenance of the
City's facilities and services which are entirely or predominantly self-supported by user charges or
where the City has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes. The City's enterprise operations include the following:

Water and Sewer Fund - A proprietary fund used to account for the water and sewer services
provided to the residents of the City of Liberty, the operations of which are financed by user
charges.

Gas Fund - A proprietary fund used to account for the gas services provided to the residents of
the City of Liberty, the operations of which are financed by user charges.

Garbage Fund - A proprietary fund used to account for the garbage services provided to the
residents of the City of Liberty, the operations of which are financed by user charges.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Accounting, continued

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the City
as a whole. The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. This is the same approach used in the preparation of proprietary fund
financial statements but differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements
are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief
explanations to better identify the reiationship between the government-wide statements and the
statements for individual funds.

Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds. Their focus is on individual
funds rather than reporting funds by type. The accounting and financial reporting treatment
applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All governmental funds are accounted
for using a flow of current financials resources measurement focus. With this measurement
focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet.
All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become
measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures, other than interest on
long-term debt, are recorded when the liability is incurred.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are
recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

Permits, fines and forfeits, and misceilaneous revenues (except for investment earnings) are
recorded as revenues when received because, they are generally not measurable until actually
received. Investment earnings are recorded when earned since they are measurable and
available in ail funds.

D. Budgeting

The City foilows the procedures established pursuant to Section 91A.030 of the Kentucky
Revised Statutes in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financiai statements. Budgets
for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

E. Internal Balances

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may
result in amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions
are classified as "internal balances". Interfund receivables and payables between funds within
governmentai activities and proprietary activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.

F. Revenues and Receivables

Proprietary funds report all revenues and expenses as operating, except interest income, interest
expense, amortization, and capital contributions.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Fund Balances

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other
governments.

Committed - amounts constrained for a specific purpose by the City using its highest
level of decision making authority. The City Council is the highest level of decision
making authority for the City of Liberty. Commitments may be established, modified, or
rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the City Council.

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. The City has
designated the Mayor to carry the intent of the City Council.

Unassigned - a\\ other spendable amounts.

It is the policy of the City to spend restricted funds first when both restricted and unrestricted
funds are available. Once restricted funds are spent, the City will use committed funds first,
assigned funds second and unassigned funds last.

As of June 30, 2014, fund balances are composed of the following:

General Nonmajor Total
Fund Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

Nonspendable-prepaid expenses $ 7,500 $ - $ 7,500
Restricted:

Road surface repairs - 161,444 161,444
Cemetery fund - 85,491 85,491

Committed 86.569 i 86.569
Total fund balances S 94.069 $ 246.935 $ 341.004

Committed funds are the result of a resolution adopted by the City Council to commit funds
toward the completion of the Casey County Community and Education Center project. This
commitment is contingent upon the attainment of all funding needed for the completion of the
college.

H. Capital Assets

Under GASB 34, the City of Liberty has elected to not report major infrastructure retroactively.
Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost. Depreciation of capital assets is
provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Infrastructure 20-40 years
Buildings 25-40 years
Improvements 10-20 years
Vehicles, furniture and equipment 5-10 years
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

I. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

J. Other Accounting Policies

General fixed asset purchases are recorded as expenditures in the general fund and special
revenue funds at the time of purchase. Such assets are capitalized at cost in the general fixed
assets group of accounts. Certain improvements including roads, bridges, curbs and gutters,
streets and sidewalks, and drainage systems acquired or constructed before July 1, 2003 have
not been capitalized. Infrastructure assets acquired or constructed after July 1, 2003 have been
capitalized as permitted by GASB 34.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is not employed by the City of Liberty.

Certificates of deposit are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. All other investments
are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices.

All restricted and unrestricted cash and investments are considered cash for purposes of the
Statement of Cash Flows.

K. Management's Review of Subsequent Events

The City has evaluated and considered the need to recognize or disclose subsequent events
through December 29, 2014, which represents the date that these financial statements were
available to be issued. Subsequent events past this date, as they pertain to the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014, have not been evaluated by the City.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Under Kentucky Revised Statute 66.480, the City is allowed to invest in obligations of the U.S. and of
its agencies, obligations backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. or a U.S. government agency,
obligations of any corporation of the U.S. government, certificates of deposit or other interest-bearing
accounts issued by institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
similarly collateralized institutions, and bonds and securities of states, local governments, or related
agencies in the U.S. rated in one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating
agency.

The City has a formal investment policy, stating that the provisions of KRS 66.480 will be adhered to in
order to reduce exposure to the following risks:

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate
changes.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
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June 30, 2014

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment wiii not fulfill its obligations.
At June 30, 2014 the City held investments in the following municipal and corporate bonds. Bond
ratings were not available for disclosure.

Municipal Bonds

Clark County Nevada Las Vegas Convention
Illinois Municipal Electric Agency Power Supply System
Illinois State GO Pension

Massachusetts Health and Education Northeast University
Minnesota Financial School Loan Revolving Fund
Walnut California Energy Center

Corporate Bonds

Citigroup Inc Global Sub Note
Citigroup Inc Senior Note

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be
able to recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party.

The City of Liberty's deposits and investments were substantially covered by federal depository
insurance, the Securities Investor Protection Corporation, or by collateral held by the custodial banks
in the City's name. The carrying amount of the City's deposits totaled $1,892,393 and the bank
balances totaled $1,943,638. As of June 30, 2014 $2,480,665 was held as collateral by the custodial
banks in the City's name.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City's investment in a
single issuer.

The City's investments at June 30, 2014, are as follows:

Investment Maturities In Years

1 year or More

Investment Tvpe Fair Value less 1-5 6-10 than 10

Certificates of deposit $ 789,082 $ 133,188 $ 655,894 $ $
Money market funds 1,287 1,287 - - -

Mutual funds 80,070 80,070 - - -

Municipal bonds 105,975 - 5,508 66,898 33,569

Corporate bonds 10,887 - 10,887 - -

S 987.301 $ 214.545 $ 672.289 $ 66.898 S 33.569
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June 30, 2014

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Receivables at year end of the City's major individual funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows:

Governmental Funds:

Taxes

Licenses, permits, billings
Intergovernmental

Gross receivables

Less: allowance for uncollectible

Net receivables

General Nonmajor Governmental
Funds Funds Total

7,884
42,097

8.447

58,428
(2.159)

$

Fund

7,884 $
42,097

3.944

- $

53,925
(2.159^

4.503

4,503

S 51.766 4.503 56.269

Water &

Sewer Fund

$ 133,176
(34.873)

Gas Fund

$ 115,370
(58.061)

Garbage
Fund

$ 51,476
(19.963)

Business-

Type
Activities

Total

$ 300,022
(112.897)

Business-Type Activities:
Customer

Less: allowance for uncollectible

Net receivables $ 98.303 £ 57.309 £_ 31.513 $_ 187.125

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital asset activity during the fiscal year follows:

Balance

June 30, 2013
Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not depreciated:
Land $ 757,851
Construction in Progress

757.851

Capital assets that are depreciated:
Land Improvements $ 669,546
Buildings and improvements 1,132,488
Vehicles 655,087
Equipment 130.709
Totals 2.587.830

Total Capital Assets 3.345.681

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Land Improvements 95,573
Buildings and Improvements 347,532
Vehicles 484,959
Equipment 44.690
Totals 972.754

Capital assets, net £ 2.372.927

Additions

4.000

4.000

$ 30,475
1,200

91,920

123.595

127.595

34,902
32,751
42,830
12.718

123.201

4.394
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Deductions

(51,941)

(51.941)

(51.941)

(45,282)

(45.282)

Balance

June 30, 2014

757,851
4.000

761.851

700,021
1,133,688

695,066
130.709

2.659.484

3.421.335

130,475
380,283
482,507

57.408

1.050.673

£ (6.659) £ 2.370.662



CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014

4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balance

June 30, 2013
Business-Type Activities

Capital assets not depreciated:
Land $ 104,272
Construction in Proaress 18.000

Additions

$

Deductions

$

Balance

June 30, 2014

$ 104,272
18.000

T otals 122.272 - - 122.272

Capital assets that are depreciated:
Water Plant $ 13,638,254
Sewer Plant 8,774,534
Gas Lines & Equipment 657,781
Garbaae Eauioment 273.482

$ 35,294
38,279
32,993

2.600

$ (38,161)

(3,500)

13,635,387
8,812,813

687,274
276.082

Totals 23.344.051 109.166 f41.6611 23.411.556

Total Capital Assets 23.466.323 109.166 f41.6611 23.533.828

Less Accumulated

Depreciation 9.122.065 721.234 (26.9101 9.816.389

Capital Assets, net S 14.344.258 £ f612.0681 $ (14.7511 $ 13.717.439

Depreciation Expense was charged to the Governmental functions as follows;

General government $ 66,836
Police 15,762
Fire 40.603

Total Depreciation Expense $ 123.201

LONG - TERM DEBT

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES

In February 2013, the Kentucky Bond Corporation issued Series 2013A Revenue Bonds for the City
in order to refund all prior outstanding Water and Sewer Fund revenue bonds. This current refunding
resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt in
the amount of $25,293. The deferred amount on refunding is being amortized as a component of
interest expense over the life of the new bond issue. The new issue will reduce debt service
payments by $1,962,458 and has a net economic gain of $731,039. As part of the issuance, the City
was required to deposit $164,250 in a debt service reserve fund managed by the Kentucky Bond
Corporation. Beginning January 1, 2039, the reserve funds will be used to reduce the City's monthly
payment.

The following is a summary of the revenue bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2014 and
2013:

Outstanding Outstanding
Revenue Bonds and Loans Payabie June 30,2014 June 30,2013
Water and Sewer Fund - $5,475,000

Kentucky Bond Corporation - 2013A Series
due in monthly installments of $12,917
to $21,364 through 2040, Interest at 2.0%-3.4% S 5.142.083 £ 5.389.545
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5. LONG - TERM DEBT (Continued)

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES, continued

During 2010, the City entered into a lease-purchase agreement with Branch Banking & Trust (BB&T)
for the purchase of a garbage truck. The agreement requires semi-annual payments of $18,125 over
a period of 5 years and the interest rate is fixed at 3.74%. The total cost of the garbage truck was
$163,924 and the net book value at June 30, 2014 was $84,694.

The future capital lease payments are summarized as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2015 S 17.792 S 333 S 18.125

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2014:

July 1,2013 Additions Retirements June 30,2014

W&SBond2013A $ 5,389,545 $ - $ (247,462) $ 5,142,083
Garbage Truck Lease 52.404 : (34.612) 17.792

$ 5.441.949 $ S (282.074) S 5.159.875

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2014, are as
follows:

June 30 Principal Interest Total

2015 $ 254,875 $ 157,725 $ 412,600
2016 221,250 152,058 373,308
2017 195,000 147,079 342,079
2018 197,083 142,692 339,775
2019 202,083 138,257 340,340
2020-2024 1,083,333 610,811 1,694,144
2025-2029 1,109,583 443,996 1,553,579
2030-2034 965,000 272,045 1,237,045
2035-2039 841,250 110,763 952,013
2040 90.418 3.738 94.156

S 5.159.875 S 2.179.164 S 7.339.039

The water and sewer fund is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions contained in
the bond indenture. As of June 30, 2014 the amount reserved for bond principal and interest
payments was $164,250. Additionally, the City has designated $32,883 to be used for bond principal
and interest payments and $411,912 as a depreciation reserve.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

During fiscal year 2002 the City of Liberty entered an agreement with the Kentucky Fire Commission to
finance construction of a new fire department. The agreement requires annual payments of $7,535.
The lease was paid off during the year ended June 30, 2014. The obligation is reported as general
long-term debt.
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5. LONG - TERM DEBT (Continued)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES, continued

During fiscal year 2008 the City of Liberty entered into a lease-purchase agreement with Oshkosh
Capital for the acquisition of a fire truck. The agreement bears interest at a rate of 4.85% and requires
annual payments of $26,860 over a period of 10 years. The total cost of the fire truck was $208,925.
The obligation is reported as general long-term debt.

As of June 30, 2014 the future capital lease payments of the fire truck are summarized as follows;

Principal Interest Total

2015 $ 23,302 $ 3,558 $ 26,860
2016 24,433 2,427 26,860
2017 25.618 1.242 26.860

$ 73.353 $ 7.227 $ 80.580

During fiscal year 2014 the City of Liberty entered into a note payable with Casey County Bank to
finance the purchase of an additional fire truck. The note bears interest at a rate of 3.0% and requires
annual payments ranging from $5,922 to $7,822. The total cost of the fire truck was $75,150. The
obligation is reported as general long-term debt.

The following is a summary of changes in general long - term debt for the year ended June 30, 2014:

July 1,2013 Additions Retirements June 30,2014
KY Fire Commission Loan $ 7,316 $ - $ (7,316) $
Osh Kosh Capital Lease 95,578 - (22,225) 73,353

74.650 - 74.650

£ 102.894 a 74.650 $ f29.5411

The following is a summary of debt service requirements as of June 30, 2014:

June 30 Principal Interest Total

2015 $ 29,224 $ 5,693 $ 34,917
2016 30,428 4,489 34,917

2017 31,794 3,124 34,918

2018 6,360 1,697 8,057

2019 6,551 1,506 8,057

2020-2024 35,824 4,461 40,285

2025 7.822 235 8.057

TOTAL S 148.003 £ 21.205 £ 169.208
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6. PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR

Property taxes for fiscal year 2014 were levied in October 2013 on the assessed valuation of property
located in Casey County as of the preceding January 1, the lien date. The due date and collection
periods for all taxes, exclusive of vehicle taxes, are as follows:

Description Per K.R.S. 134.020
1. Due date for payment of taxes Upon receipt
2. Face value amount payment dates Upon receipt to January 31
3. 10% delinquent date February 1

Vehicle taxes are collected by the County Clerk of Casey County and are due and collected in the
birth month of the licensee.

7. RETIREMENT PLAN

The City of Liberty is a participating employer of the County Employees' Retirement System (CERS).
Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 61.645, the Board of Trustees of Kentucky
Retirement Systems administers the CERS.

The plan issues separate financial statements which may be obtained by request from Kentucky
Retirement Systems, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601.

Plan Description - CERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers
substantially all regular full-time members employed in positions of each participating county, city, and
school board, and any additional eligible local agencies electing to participate in the
System. The plan provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members. Retirement
benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances. Cost-of-
living (COLA) adjustments are provided at the discretion of state legislature.

Contributions - For the year ended June 30, 2014, plan members were required to contribute 5.00% of
wages for non-hazardous job classifications. Employees hired after August 31, 2008 and not already
in the retirement system must contribute an additional 1% to subsidize health insurance premiums that
are primarily withheld from CERS retirees' benefit payments. Participating employers were required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.565(3), normal
contribution and past service contribution rates shall be determined by the Board on the basis of an
annual valuation last proceeding the July 1 of a new blennium. The Board may amend contribution
rates as of the first day of July of the second year of a blennium, if it is determined on the basis of a
subsequent actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements
determined in accordance with actuarial basis adopted by the Board. For the year ended June 30,
2014, participating employers contributed 18.89%, of each employee's wages, which is equal to the
actuarially determined rate set by the Board. Administrative costs of Kentucky Retirement System are
financed through employer contributions and investment earnings.

The required contribution (employer and employee) and the actual percentage contributed for the City
for the current and previous two years are as follows:

Required Percentage
Year Contribution Contributed

2014 $ 162,791 100%
2013 $ 157,398 100%
2012 $ 157,323 100%
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Liberty is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. In addition to
its general liability insurance, the city also carries commercial insurance for all other risks of loss such
as worker's compensation and employee health and accident insurance.

9. RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain presentations of accounts previously reported have been reclassified in these financial
statements. Such reclassification had no effect on net income or net assets as previously reported.

10. CONCENTRATIONS

The City has a concentration of revenue in the Water and Sewer Fund and the Gas Fund. One
customer generated approximately 42% of the Water and Sewer Fund's service revenue and 40% of
the accounts receivable at June 30, 2014. In addition, one industrial company generated
approximately 30% of gas service charges and comprised 61% of the accounts receivable balance
reported in the Gas Fund at June 30, 2014.

11. RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Effective July 1, 2013, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as
Assets and Liabilities. This statement redefines certain financial elements previously reported as
assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. In addition,
the Statement changes the method of reporting debt issuance costs. Prior to implementation of GASB
Statement No. 65, the City reported debt issuance costs, including costs related to bond issuance, as
deferred debt expense which was capitalized and amortized over the life of the debt. Deferred debt
expense was reported as a non-current asset on the statement of net position. Under GASB
Statement No. 65, bond issuance costs, excluding bond insurance costs which should be treated as a
prepaid asset, are to be recognized in the period of the debt issue. This resulted in a restatement of
previousiy reported net position, as foilows:

2014 2013

Water & Business-type
Sewer Fund Activity Total

Net position, at beginning of year $ 9,597,935 $ .10,857,403
Bond issuance costs (224,656) (224,656)
Amortization expense i (3.3381

Net position, at beginning of year, as restated $ 9.373.279 $ 10.629.409
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12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Financial Reporting for Pension Plans

In June 2012, the GASB approved a pair of related Statements that reflect substantial changes to the
accounting and financial reporting of state and local government employers and pension plans.
Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, addresses financial reporting for state and
iocal government pension plans. Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financiai Reporting for Pensions,
addresses financial reporting for state and local government employers whose employees are
provided with pensions through pension plans that are covered under Statement No. 67.

The guidance contained in these Statements wiil change how governments calculate and report the
costs and obligations associated with pensions in important ways. It is designed to improve the
decision usefulness of reported pension information and to increase the transparency, consistency,
and comparability of pension information across governments. Under the pension standards now in
effect, cost-sharing employers have not been required to present actuarial information about pensions.
Instead, information has been required to be presented in the pension plan's own financial statements
for all of the participating governments combined.

Through its research, the GASB concluded that the needs of users of information regarding cost-
sharing employers do not differ significantly from those interested in single and agent employers.
Therefore, the GASB believes it is important to give users of the financial statements of cost-sharing
employers access to better, more transparent financial information. Consequently, under the new
standards the GASB is requiring that cost-sharing governments report a net pension liability, pension
expense, and pension related deferred inflows and outflows of resources based on their proportionate
share of the coilective amounts for all the governments in the plan.

Statement No. 68 will take effect for pension pian employers in fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2014, (that is, for years ended June 30, 2015, or later). The City is currently evaluating the effects of
this statement on its financial statements. The City's potential unfunded liability, based on June 30,
2013 plan financial statements, is estimated to be $1,395,582. The actual liability for June 30, 2015,
could be considerably different due to changes in system assumptions and liabilities.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON

GENERAL FUND

for the year ended June 30, 2014

Enacted Amended

Budget Budget

Taxes

Property taxes & motor vehicle taxes $ 245,000 $ 253,000
Payment in lieu of taxes 9,000 9,250

254,000 262,250

Licenses, permits, billings
City stickers 13,000 13,000

Franchise fees 68,000 77,500
Insurance premiums 210,000 200,000
Building permits 2,000 2,200

293,000 292,700

Fines and foifeitures

Parking Tickets/Arrest Fees 1,600 1,600

1,600 1,600

Intergovernmental revenue
Base court revenue 11,000 11,000

Police incentive pay 14,500 15,500

Local economic assistance 2,300 2,300

Other grants 159,365 13,500

Fire equipment grant 8,250 8,250

195,415 50,550

Charges for services
Fishing permits 1,200 1,850

Accident reports 1,000 1,200

2,200 3,050

Other revenues

Interest income 1,200 1,200

Management fees 135,000 135,000

Other revenues 17,000 32,500

153,200 168,700

Sale of asset - -

Total Revenue $ 899,415 $ 778,850
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Actual

256,226
9,250

265,476

18,244

77,981
181,587

2,195

280,007

1,175

1,175

9,593

17,348
2,054

13,500

8,250

50,745

1,730

1,110

2,840

3,718

135,000
47,747

186,465

9,063

$ 795,771

Variance

$ 3,226

3,226

5,244

481

(18,413)

{5}
(12,693)

J42^
J425)

(1,407)
1,848

(246)

195

(120)

_(90)
(210)

2,518

15,247

17,765

9,063

16,921



CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON

GENERAL FUND

for the year ended June 30, 2014

Enacted Amended

Budget Budget Actual Variance

General Government

Salaries $ 106,400 $ 101,900 $ 103,926 $ 2,026

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 32,719 27,550 28,379 829

KY ASAP grant 10,500 10,500 8,320 (2,180)
Planning and zoning expenses 6,000 5,500 5,205 (295)
Professional services 10,000 7,500 5,625 (1,875)

Utilities 10,000 8,400 8,286 (114)

Office supplies 3,400 3,400 4,259 859

Insurance 18,000 20,000 24,687 4,687

Travel/lodging 4,000 4,000 2,761 (1,239)

Lake Liberty expenses 10,000 1,000 383 (617)

Postage 1,400 - - -

Dues and subscriptions - -
597 597

Parks and recreation 30,000 30,000 23,693 (6,307)

Education center - 58,832 97,954 39,122

Fireworks 22,000 19,000 22,373 3,373

Other expenses 41,500 22,000 18,899 (3,101)

305,919 319,582 355,347 35,765

Police

Salaries 212,500 207,400 212,130 4,730

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 84,029 74,918 83,115 8,197

Motor fuels 18,000 18,000 17,227 (773)

Utilities 4,000 4,000 4,307 307

Equipment 15,000 7,500 6,980 (520)

Vehicle repairs 8,000 4,000 3,668 (332)

Uniforms 2,000 2,000 2,958 958

Insurance 17,000 23,000 22,627 (373)

Travel and lodging 500 - - -

Miscellaneous 4,500 4,500 6,359 1,859

365,529 345,318 359,371 14,053

Fire

Labor 44,400 47,900 47,600 (300)

Repairs and maintenance 2,000 2,000 1,897 (103)

Equipment 15,000 25,000 22,049 (2,951)

Utilities 8,400 11,500 11,161 (339)

Insurance 5,200 8,000 7,807 (193)

Motor fuel 5,000 3,000 2,586 (414)

Miscellaneous 3,000 5,500 6,547 1,047

83,000 102,900 99,647 (3,253)
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON

GENERAL FUND

for the year ended June 30, 2014

Enacted

Budget
Amended

Budget Actual Variance

Streets and Public Works

Street repairs $ 10,000 $ 6,000 $ 5,360 $ (640)
Repairs and maintenance 2,000 5,000 4,687 (313)
Utilities 50,000 69,000 64,622 (4,378)
Supplies 6,000 1,500 - (1,500)
Insurance 2,300 2,300 - (2,300)

70,300 83,800 74,669 (9,131)

Capital Outlay 163,865 58,600 127,595 68,995

Debt Service 35.110 35.110 33,857 (1,253)

Total Expenditures 1,023,723 945,310 1,050,486 105,176

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Note proceeds - - 74,650 74,650
Transfers in (out) 160,000 174,000 192,513 18,513

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS $ 863,723 $ 771,310 $ 783,323 $ 12,013

Note 1: Adopted budgets failed to included $24,123 of council approved expenditures related to the education
center project.

Note 2: Capital outlay includes expenditures for items funded through note proceeds that were netted against
revenue and not budgeted.
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ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Receivables, net

Due from other funds

CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2014

Cemetery
Fund

$ 32,363
57,914

Municipal
Road Aid

Fund

4,503

156,941

Total

Governmental

Funds

32,363

57,914

4,503

156,941

Total assets $ 90,277 $ 161,444 $ 251,721

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balances
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$ 4,786 i. 4,786

4,786 4,786

85,491 161,444 246,935

$ 90,277 $ 161,444 $ 251,721



CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

for the year ended June 30, 2014

Cemetery
Fund

Municipal
Road Aid

Fund

REVENUES

Intergovernmental
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government

Streets department

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

6,964

6,964

4,217

4,217

2,747

2,747

82,744

$ 50,167 $

50,167

11,330

11,330

38,837

(36,400)

(36,400)

2,437

159,007

Total

50,167
6,964

57,131

4,217

11,330

15,547

41,584

(36,400)

(36,400)

5,184

241,751

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in (out)

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances-beginning

Fund balances-ending $ 85,491 $ 161,444 $ 246,935
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CITY OF LIBERTY, KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

WATER AND SEWER PROPRIETARY FUND

for the year ended June 30, 2014

WATER SEWER

2014

TOTAL

2013

Totals

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for service $ 813,753 $ 320,604 $ 1,134,357 $ 1,117,183

813,753 320,604 1,134,357 1,117,183

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 161,574 55,757 217,331 203,419

Casual labor 16,361 16,361 32,722 21,129

Payroll taxes 11,617 4,008 15,625 14,406

Retirement 28,596 9,868 38,464 31,407

Uniforms and laundry 7,255 6,177 13,432 8,789

Maintenance and repairs 230,882 85,423 316,305 354,375

Motor fuel 13,093 7,306 20,399 20,133

Office expense and postage 4,680 3,488 8,168 7,739

Legal and professional 17,049 12,357 29,406 30,631

Utilities 63,171 53,178 116,349 111,218

Insurance 56,240 23,258 79,498 74,857

Sludge hauling - - - 35,201

Pretreatment expenses - 15,938 15,938 15,893

Management fees 32,714 10,286 43,000 43,000

Other expense 14,336 8,461 22,797 12,100

Amortization - - - 3,338

Depreciation . 344,731 345,185 689,916 698,756

1,002,299 657,051 1,659,350 1,686,391

)PERATING INCOME $ (188,546) $ (336,447) $ (524,993) $ (569,208)
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rfhRay, Foley, Hensley & Company, pllc
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Mayor and the City Council
City of Liberty
Liberty, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Liberty, Kentucky, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Liberty, Kentucky's basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated December 29, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Liberty,
Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Liberty,
Kentucky's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Liberty, Kentucky's internal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Liberty, Kentucky's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grantagreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective ofour audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards.

230 Lexington Green Circle, Suite 600 • Lexington, Kentucky 40503-3326
Phone:859-231-1800 • Fax:859-422-1800 • Toil-Free: 1-800-342-7299

www.rfhco.com

Members American Institute of Ciertified Public Accoimtants and Kentucky Society of Certified Public Accountants



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ray, Foley, Hensley and Company, PLLC
December 29, 2014

-38-



2. Provide copies of Liberty's annual Uniform Financial Information Report, prepared

pursuant to KRS 65.905, for fiscal years 2014, 2015, and 2016.

RESPONSE: Copies of Liberty's Uniform Financial Information Report for fiscal years 2014

and 2015 are attached. The Uniform Financial Information Report for fiscal year 2016 has not

been finalized.

WITNESS: Bridgett Blake



FORM F-65{KY-3)0

9/3/2015

' UNBniDI-ED SPIFtIT

City

Uniform Financial

information Report

Fiscal Year 2014 - 2015

Return to:

Department for Local Government
Cities and Special Districts Branch
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340
Frankfort, KY 40601

Part I - Reporting Information

City Name

Address

City, State, Zip

County

City Classification

City of Liberty

PO Box 127

Liberty, KY 42539

Casey

Fifth

(Please correct any etror in name, address, and ZIP Code)

Please save the worksheet to your hard drive.
Once completed, attach the worksheet to an

email and forward to DLG-CSD@ky.gov.

SEND ONE ORIGINAL AND TWO COPIES OF THE COMPLETED

FORM to the Department for Local Government BY MAY 1, 2016.

Note- Data supplied byyourcityin this reportwill be used byState and Federal Agencies and publicInterestgroups InKentucky, Byfiling this report,you will not receive local
government finance reporting forms from the U.S. Census Bureau.

Part II - Contact Information

Name of person who completed form Telephone

RFH, PLLC 859-231-1800

Title Date

CPA 05/27/16

Company (if not city) Reporting Format (accounting basis) Telephone

RFH, PLLC MODIFIED ACCRUAL 859-231-1800

RELATED ORGANIZATIONS - Please list related organizations such as Boards, Commissions, or Utilities, whose Board members are appointed
by the City's Mayor or legislative body, or who receive a major portion of their funding from city resources.

Organization/Address Chief Executive Telephone

Part III - Certification - Completed report must be signed prior to filing.
This Is to certify that the data contained In this report is accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signature of Official Title Date completed

CITY CLERK 05/27/16

Printed Name of Official Telephone

SHARLEEN BOLTON 606-787-9973

lofs



^UNomioL-CD

F-65(ky-3)0 9/2015
City UFIR

Before fillingout this form, please read carefully each part and all related definitions and instructions.

All information should be provided on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles for the fiscal year July 1. 2014 through June
30, 2015.

Combine all items that are not entered in specific categories provided and
enter the total in the "Other" line item. Amounts classified as "Other"

should not exceed 5% of the corresponding category total

ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR. DO NOT SHOW CENTS FOR
REVENUES OR EXPENDITURES

THE ACTUALTAX RATE LEVIED,COLUMN (c), PART IV MUST BE
COMPLETED EVEN IF THERE WAS NOT A CHANGE IN THE TAX RATE

FROM FISCAL YEAR 2013 - 2014.

Tax rates should be reported as decimal amounts. For instance a rate of 22
and 7/10 cents per $100 assessed value should be reported as .227

PLEASE BE SURE THAT AN OFFICIAL SIGNS THE CERTIFICATION.

FORMS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED WITHOUT SIGNATURE.

Part IV- City Revenue requests the fee, rate or amount charged per unit of
service. Ifany line-item has a multiple rate schedule, please provide a copy of
the rate schedule. The schedule is only required in years when the rates have
been revised or implemented.

Please be sure to reconcile subtotals and totals to the city's annual
financial statements.

Report only new debt or lease agreements. DO NOT COMPLETE THESE
SECTIONS AGAIN IF THEY WERE REPORTED LAST YEAR AND THERE

WERE NO CHANGES IN THE DEBT OR LEASE AGREEMENT.

DLG has developed an electronic version of the UFIR You can access
this document on the DLG website: http://www.kydlgweb.ky gov/. For
more informationcontact DLG-CSD@ky.gov or 800-346-5606.

Information in this report should match finandal information in the city's annual
audited financial statements prepared in accordance with KRS 91A.020

Note Especially
Please report amounts covenng all funds and accounts of your city except for
employee-retirement funds administered by your city. Include bond
redemption and interest funds, and construction or development funds as well
as current funds. Exclude refunds and transfers between funds.

Please use black or blue ball point pen.

Since this form applies to cities of different sizes and complexity, some items
may not apply to your city. However, read the definitions carefully for each
item in the report.

Do not change any categories. Call for clarification.

This report must be returned to the Department of Local Government by May
1, 2016 per requirements of KRS 65.905.

Financial information for ail utilities connected with the city must be
reported on this form.

Please note your basis of accounting (cash, modified accrual or accrual) in
this report.

Depreciation - to be shown as a part of "Other Operations".

General Definitions

The following general definitions will apply to grouping of expenditure categories:

General Govemmertt • includes all general functions of your city including finance, administration, elected officials, public buildings and general insurance
coverage if not assigned to individual operating departments.

Public Safety • includes all police, fire, ambulance, correctional, inspection and code enforcement activities, and any other activitythat promotes the
protection of life and property.

Public Services - includes maintenance and construction of basic Infrastructure and solid waste activities. Streets and roads, leaf and brush collection,
solid waste collection and recycling, operation of public parking, hverports, and stormwater and natural resource management.

Community Service - includes parks and recreation, public health, public welfare and assistance activities, housing and community development, mass
transit programs, and educational support programs.

Utilities - include water sewerage, natural gas, electric and telecommunications systems. Please report stormwater utilitycosts within Public Services
even if a fee is charged to support the program as a utility



Part IV - TAX RATES

FORM F-66(KY-3)0 - 9/2015

Compensating 4% Increase Adopted Rate
A. Property Tax Rates (a) (b) (c)

1. Real .217

2. Personal .217

3. Motor vehlcle/watercraft .208

B. Other Rates

1. Occupational license fee (payroll tax)

2. Net profits

3. Gross receipt tax

4. Insurance premium tax 8.000000

5, Bank deposits .025000

6. Restaurant tax 3.000000

7. Motel tax

Part V - TAX AND OTHER REVENUES

Please listall tax revenues received for the reporting period. Intergovernmental revenues should be listed under the source from which you received
them, I.e.State, Federal, or from a City, Countyor a Special District. This may Include revenues received from services you provide to another
government.

A. Property Tax

1. Real

2. Personal

3. Motor vehlcle/watercraft

4. Bank deposits franchise tax

5. Delinquent (all years)

SUBTOTAL Property Taxes

B. License and Permit Fees

1. City vehicle licensing (auto stickers)

2. Right of way/street cut permits

3. Alcoholic beverage licenses

4. Planning, zoning, development fees

5. Other licensing and permit fees Including;
Animal control; building, electrical, and
plumbing permits; Electrical contractors'
licenses, development Impact fees,
unloading fees, building, electrical,
plumbing and natural gas Inspections.)

SUBTOTAL License & Permit Fees

Please continue on next page
3 of 8

$248,536

$17,277

$5,706

$271,519

$4,917

$595

$5,512



C. Occupation and Business Fees

1. Occupational license fees

(a) Payroll

(b) Net profits

(c) Gross receipts

2. Fixed rate business license

SUBTOTAL for Occupation and Business Fees

D. Other Taxes/Fees

1. Franchise fees

(a) Electric

(b) Natural gas

(c) Water/wastewater

(d) Other franchise fees

2. Motel tax

3. Restaurant tax

4. Insurance premium tax

SUBTOTAL for Other Taxes/Fees

Function activity

E. Intergovernmental Revenues

1. General Support

2. Government payments in lieu of taxes

3. Public Safety

(a) Police

(b) Fire/EMS

(c) Corrections

4. Public Services

(a) Streets and roads

5. Community Services

(a) Parks and recreation

(b) Public welfare

(c) Public health

(d) Housing and community development

(e) Transit/bus systems

(f) Educational support

From cities,

counties, or

speciai districts

(a)

$2,455

Please continue on next page

4 of 8

$70,018

$5,998

$96,394

$233,844

$406,254

From State

(b)

$22,623

$52,475

$11,450

From Federal

(c)



Part V - Tax and Other Revenues - Continued

From cities,

counties, or

special districts

(a) From State (b)

FORM F-65(KY-3)0 - 9/2015

E. Intergovernmental Revenues - Continued

6. Utilities

(a) Water supply

(b) Sewerage systems

(c) Electric power systems

(d) Natural gas systems

(e) Telecommunications

7. Other intergovernmental revenues (Include: Local
government economic assistance: area development
fund grant; other from local, state or federal
governments.)

SUBTOTAL for Intergovernment Revenues

F. Other Revenues/Charges

1. Airport revenue

2. Utility sales

(a) Water

(b) Sewerage

(c) Electric

(d) Natural gas

(e) Telecommunications/cable

3. Parking (lots, meters, garages,etc)

4. Parks and recreation receipts

5. River ports, locks, etc.

6. Special assessments

7. Sale of real or surplus property

8. Investment/interest earnings
(Exclude construction and pensions)

9. Fines and forfeits (including parking violations)

10. Transit authority

11. Penalties and interest

12. Donations

13. Rents

$0

$2,455

Please continue on next page

5 of 8

$134,512

$802,734

$323,504

$1,142,573

$19,149

$1,240

From Federal (c)



Part V - TAX AND OTHER REVENUES - Continued

FORM F-65(KY-3)0 - 9/2015

14. Solid waste collection and disposal $376,267
15. Other miscellaneous revenues

(Include: recoveries, impounded vehicles, ambulance
runs, fire protection, police arrest fees, etc) $206,077

16. Bond proceeds

SUBTOTAL Other Revenues/Charges $2,871,544

TOTAL Municipal Revenues $3,691,796

Part VI-EXPENDITURES

List all city spending both as direct expenditures and costs associated with services provided by other governments. An example might be
spending for sewerage treatment by another city, orpolice orfire services provided by the county government. Include costs your city incurs for
services provided byother non-profit agencies such as social services, public health, and public welfare.

Function activity

A. Intergovernmental Expenditures —(all payments to other
governments for services, programs, or reimbursements)

1. General government

2. Public safety

3. Public services

4. Community services

5. Utilities

SUBTOTAL for Intergovernmental Expenditures

To other cities, counties, or special
districts

(a)

$0 $0

To Federal

(c)

$0

Provide spending directly attributed tothecity's operations by salaries and \A/ages, other operations, and capital outlay. Salaries and wages
should only include direct salary costs including any overtime and differential pay. Do not include fringe benefits or othercosts such as
unemployement insurance. Operations include all other costs including materials, supplies, contractural services and other miscellaneous costs.
Capital outlay is normally defined as items costing at least $1,000 and having a useful life of more than three years.

Function activity

B. Direct Expenditures by the City

1. General government
(Administrative, legal, overhead, public buildings)

2. General government: Financial Administration

3. Public Safety

(a) Police

(b) Fire/EMS/Ambulance

(c) Code enforcement/inspection

(d) Corrections

(e) Other costs (e.g., dispatch)

SUBTOTAL Direct Expenditures by City

Salaries and

wages

(a)

$111,460

$212,262

$54,000

$377,742

Other operations
(b)

$1,157,918

$62,787

$60,222

$1,280,927

Please continue on next page
6 of 8

Capital Outlay

Equipment, land
and existing
structures

(c)

$122,941

$122,941

Construction

(d)

$0



Part VI - EXPENDITURES - Continued

FORM F-65(KY-3)0 - 9/2015

Function activity

(a) Streets and roads

(b) Sanitation/solid waste

(c) Natural resources

(d) Riverport facilities

(e) Parking facilities

(f) Cemeteries

SUBTOTAL for Public Services

5. Community services

(a) Parks and recreation

(b) Public health

(c) Public welfare
(d) Housing and community

development

(e) Transit/bus system

(f) Educational support

SUBTOTAL for Community Services

6. Utilities

(a) Water systems

(b) Sewerage systems

(c) Electric power systems

(d) Natural gas systems

(e) Cable/telecommunications

SUBTOTAL for Utilities

7. Debt payments (include all
principal and interest)

(a) General Government

(b) Public safety

(c) Public services

(d) Community services

(e) Utilities

SUBTOTAL for Debt Payments

8. Bond insurance costs

9. Miscellaneous expenditures

SUBTOTAL Bond Ins & Misc Expenditures

SUBTOTAL Direct Expenditures by City

Salaries and

wages (a)

$51,423

$51,423

$183,542

$33,700

$195,177

$412,419

$841,584

Other operations

(b)

$144,909

$262,163

$407,072

$1,138,758

$211,913

$586,257

$1,936,928

$4,078,477

Please continue on next page

7 of 8

Capital Outlay

Equipment, land
and existing
structures

$122,941

Construction (d)



Part VII - PENSION AND BENEFIT COSTS
FORM F-65(KY-3)0 - 09/2015

Personnel Expenditures

1. CERS non-hazardous $99,802

2. CERS hazardous

3. City pensions

4. Health insurance $175,723

5. All other employee benefits

SUBTOTAL Pension & Benefits $275,525

Part VIII - INDEBTEDNESS

List a summary oftotal city debt outstanding at the beginning and end ofthe fiscal year, include new debt incurred during the reporting
period. Segregate the total debt by revenue and general obligation bonds.

Activity

Outstanding
beginning FY

(a)

Issued

(b)
Retired

(c)

Outstanding
ending FY (d)

General

obligation (e)

Revenue

bonds

(f)

1. General governmental funds $148,003 $850,000 $29,224 $968,779 $968,779
2. Business type funds

(water, sewer, gas, electric) $5,159,875 $254,875 $4,905,000 $0 $4,905,000
3. Private activity bonds

(industrial revenue, non profits...) $0
4. Short-term debt

(All government funds)

(a) Beginning of fiscal year

(b) End of fiscal year

5. Interest paid on

(a) Water debt

(b) Electric debt

(c) Gas debt

(d) Transit debt

(b) All other debt

TOTAL Interest Paid

TOTAL Municipal Expenditures
Sum totals of Parts Vl and VII

1. Beginning of fiscal year

2. End of fiscal year

(a) Sinking funds

(b) Bond proceeds

(c) Other reserved funds

$157,844

$11,607

$169,451

$5,318,527

Part IX - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

$1,892,393

$164,250

$315,209

(d) All non-reserved cash and investments $1,374,460

Finished

a of 8



FORM F-65(KY-3)0

9/1/2014

UNsmcyuED sphrit

City

Uniform Financial

information Report

Fiscal Year 2013-2014

Part 1- Reporting Information

City Name

Address

City, State, Zip

County

City Classification

City of Liberty

PC Box 127

Liberty, KY 42539

Casey

Fifth

(Please correct any error in name, address, and ZIP Code)

Please save the worksheet to your hard drive. Once
completed you can attach the worksheet to an email and
forward to DLG-CSD@ky.gov

Return to:

Department for Local Government
Cities and Special Districts Branch

1 = 1 1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340
Frankfort, KY 40601

SEND ONE ORIGINAL AND TWO COPIES OF THE COMPLETED

FORM to the Department for Local Government BY MAY 1, 2015.

Note - Data supplied byyour city in thisreport will be usedbyStateand Federal Agencies and public Interest groups In Kentucky. By filing thisreport, you will notreceive local
government finance reporting forms from the U.S. Census Bureau.

Part II - Contact Information

Name of person who completed form Telephone

RAY, FOLEY, HENSLEY & COMPANY, PLLC 8592311800

Title Date

CPA'S

Company (if not city) Reporting Format (accounting basis) Telephone

RAY, FOLEY, HENSLEY & COMPANY, PLLC MODIFIED ACCRUAL 8592311800

RELATED ORGANIZATIONS - Please listrelated organizationssuch as Boards, Commissions, or Utilities, whose Boardmembers are appointed
by the City's Mayoror legislative body, or who receive a major portion of their funding from city resources.

Organization/Address Chief Executive Telephone

Part III - Certification - Completed report must be signed prior to filing.
This Is to certify that the data contained In this report is accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signature of Official Title Date completed

CITY CLERK

Printed Name of Official Telephone

SHARLEEN RODGERS 6067879973

lofS
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F-65(ky-3)0 9/2014
City LFIR

Before fillingout this form, please read carefully each part and all related definitions and instructions.

All information should be provided on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting pnnciples for the fiscal year July 1. 2013 through June
30, 2014.

Combine all items that are not entered in specific categories provided and
enter the total in the "Other" line item. Amounts classified as "Other"

should not exceed 5% of the corresponding category total.

ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLUR. DO NOT SHOW CENTS FOR

REVENUES OR EXPENDITURES

THE ACTUALTAX RATE LEVIED,COLUMN (c ). PART iV MUST BE
COMPLETED EVEN IF THERE WAS NOT A CHANGE IN THE TAX RATE
FROM FISCAL YEAR 2012- 2013.

Tax rates should be reported as decimal amounts. For instance a rate of 22
and 7/10 cents per $100 assessed value should be reported as .227

PLEASE BE SURE THAT AN OFFICIAL SIGNS THE CERTIFICATION.

FORMS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED WITHOUT SIGNATURE.

Part IV- City Revenue requests the fee. rate or amount charged per unit of
service Ifany line-item has a multiple rate schedule, please provide a copy of
the rate schedule The schedule is only required In years when the rates have
been revised or Implemented.

Please be sure to reconcile subtotals and totals to the city's annual
financial statements.

Report only new debt or lease agreements. DO NOT COMPLETE THESE
SECTIONS AGAIN IF THEY WERE REPORTED LAST YEAR AND THERE

WERE NO CHANGES IN THE DEBT OR LEASE AGREEMENT.

DLG has developed an electronic version of the UFIR. You can access
this document on the DLG website: www.dIg.ky.gov.org. For more
information contact DLG-CSD@ky.gov.or or 800-346-5606.

Information in this report should match financial information in the city's annual
audited financial statements prepared in accordance with KRS 91A.020

Note Especially
Please report amounts covenng all funds and accounts of your city except for
employee-retirement funds administered by your city. Include bond
redemption and interest funds, and construction or development funds as well
as current funds. Exclude refunds and transfers between funds.

Please use black or blue ball point pen.

Since this form applies to cities of different sizes and complexity, some items
may not apply to your city. However, read the definitions carefully for each
item in the report.

Do not change any categories. Call for clarification.

This report must be returned to the Department of Local Government by May
1, 2015 per requirements of KRS 65.905.

Financial information for all utilities connected with the city must be
reported on this form.

Please note your basis of accounting (cash, modified accrual or accrual) in
this report. Depreciation - to be shown as a part of "Other Operations".

General Definitions

The following general definitions will apply to grouping of expenditure categohes.

General Government - includes all general functions of your cityincludingfinance, administration, elected officials,public buildingsand general insurance
coverage if not assigned to individual operating departments.

Public Safety • includes all police, fire, ambulance, correctional, inspection and code enforcement activities, and any other activity that promotes the
protection of life and property.

Public Services • includes maintenance and construction of basic infrastructure and solid waste activities. Streets and roads, leaf and brush collection,
solid waste collection and recycling, operation of public parking, riverports, and stormwater and natural resource management.

Community Service - includes parks and recreation, public health, public welfare and assistance activities, housing and community development, mass
transit programs, and educational support programs.

Utilities - include water sewerage, natural gas, electric and telecommunications systems. Please report stormwater utilitycosts within Public Services
even if a fee is charged to support the program as a utility.



Part IV - TAX RATES

FORM F-66(KY-3)0 - 9/2014

A. Property Tax Rates
Compensating

(a)

4% Increase

(b)

Adopted Rate

(c)

1. Real .223

2. Personal .223

3. Motor vehlcle/watercraft .208

B. Other Rates

1. Occupational license fee (payroll tax)

2. Net profits

3. Gross receipt tax

4. Insurance premium tax 8.000000

5. Bank deposits .025000

6. Restaurant tax

7. Motel tax

Part V - TAX AND OTHER REVENUES
Please list all taxrevenues received for the reporting period. Intergovernmental revenues should be listed from the source from which you received
them, i.e.State, Federal, or from anotherCity or SpecialDistrict. This mayinclude revenues received from services youprovide to another
government.

A. Property Tax

1. Real $237,117

2. Personal

3. Motor vehlcle/watercraft $17,331

4. Bank deposits franchise tax

5. Delinquent (all years) $1,778

SUBTOTAL Property Taxes $256,226

B. License and Permit Fees

1. City vehicle licensing (auto stickers) $18,244

2. Right of way/street cut permits

3. Alcoholic beverage licenses

4. Planning, zoning, development fees

5. Other licensing and permit fees including:
Animal control; building, electrical, and
plumbing permits; Electrical contractors'
licenses, development impact fees,
unloading fees, building, electrical,
plumbing and natural gas inspections.) $2,195

SUBTOTAL License & Permit Fees $20,439

Please continue on next page
3 of 8



Part V - TAX AND OTHER REVENUES - Continued
FORM F-65{KY-3)0 - 9/2013

C. Occupation and Business Fees

1. Occupational license fees

(a) Payroll

(b) Net profits

(c) Gross receipts

2. Fixed rate business license

SUBTOTAL for Occupation and Business Fees

D. Other Taxes/Fees

1. Franchise fees

(a) Electric

(b) Natural gas

(c) Water/wastewater

(d) Other franchise fees

2. Motel tax

3. Restaurant tax

4. Insurance premium tax

SUBTOTAL for Other Taxes/Fees

Function activity

E. intergovernmental Revenues

1. General Support

2. Government payments in lieu of taxes

3. Public Safety

(a) Police

(b) Fire/EMS

(c) Corrections

4. Public Services

(a) Streets and roads

5. Community Services

(a) Parks and recreation

(b) Public welfare

(c) Public health

(d) Housing and community development

(e) Transit/bus systems

(f) Educational support

From cities,

counties, or

special districts

(a)

$2,054

$9,250

Please continue on next page

4 of 8

$70,043

$7,938

$181,587

$259,568

From State

(b)

$23,093

$17,348

From Federal

(c)



Part V - Tax and Other Revenues - Continued

From cities,

counties, or

special districts

(a) From State (b)

FORM F-65(KY-3)0 - 9/2014

E. Intergovernmental Revenues - Continued

6. Utilities

(a) Water supply

(b) Sewerage systems

(c) Electric power systems

(d) Natural gas systems

(e) Telecommunications

7. Other intergovernmental revenues (Include: Local
government economic assistance: area development
fund grant; other from local, state or federal
governments.)

SUBTOTAL for Intergovernment Revenues

F. Other Revenues/Charges

1. Airport revenue

$4,281

$2,350

$17,935 $98,858

From Federal (c)

$0

2. Utility sales

(a) Water $813,753

(b) Sewerage $320,604

(c) Electric

(d) Natural gas $1,192,674

(e) Telecommunications/cable

3. Parking (lots, meters, garages,etc)

4. Parks and recreation receipts

5. River ports, locks, etc.

6. Special assessments

7. Sale of real or surplus property

8. Investment/interest earnings
(Exclude construction and pensions) $31,915

9. Fines and forfeits (including parking violations) $1,175

10. Transit authority

11. Penalties and interest

12. Donations

13. Rents

Please continue on next page
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Part V - TAX AND OTHER REVENUES - Continued

FORM F-65(KY-3)0 - 9/2014

14. Solid waste collection and disposal $372,040

15. Other miscellaneous revenues

(Include: recoveries, impounded vehicles, ambulance
runs, fire protection, police arrest fees, etc) $189,367

16. Bond proceeds

SUBTOTAL Other Revenues/Charges $2,921,528

TOTAL Municipal Revenues $3,574,554

Part VI - EXPENDITURES

List all city spending bothas directexpendituresand costs associated with services provided byother governments. An example might be
spendingforsewerage treatment byanother city, or police or fire services provided bythe county government. Include costs yourcity incurs for
services provided by other non-profit agencies such as social services, public health, and public welfare.

Function activity
To other cities, counties, or special

districts To State

(a) (b)
To Federal

(c)

A. Intergovernmental Expenditures —(all payments to other
governments for services, programs, or reimbursements)

1. General government

2. Public safety

3. Public services

4. Community services

5. Utilities

SUBTOTAL for Intergovernmental Expenditures $0 $0 $0

Providespending directly attributed to the city'soperations by salaries and wages, other operations, and capital outlay. Salaries and wages
should only include direct salary costs including any overtime and differential pay. Do not include fringe benefits or other costs such as
unemployement insurance. Operations include all other costs including materials, supplies, contractural services and other miscellaneous costs.
Capital outlay is normallydefined as items costing at least $1,000 and having a useful life of more than three years.

Function activity Salaries and

wages

(a)

Other operations
(b)

Capital Outlay

Equipment, land
and existing
structures

(c)

Construction

(d)

B. Direct Expenditures by the City

1. General government
(Administrative, legal, overhead, public buildings) $103,926 $230,742 $127,595

2. General government: Financial Administration

3. Public Safety

(a) Police $225,603 $66,100

(b) Fire/EMS/Ambulance $47,600 $52,047

(c) Code enforcement/inspection

(d) Corrections

(e) Other costs (ie dispatch)

SUBTOTAL Direct Expenditures by City $377,129 $348,889 $127,595 $0

Please continue on next page
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Part VI - EXPENDITURES - Continued
FORM F-65(KY-3)0 - 9/2014

Function activity

4. Public services

(a) Streets and roads

(b) Sanitation/solid waste

(c) Natural resources

(d) Riverport facilities

(e) Parking facilities

(f) Cemeteries

SUBTOTAL for Public Services

5. Community services

(a) Parks and recreation

(b) Public health

(c) Public welfare
(d) Housing and community

development

(e) Transit/bus system

(f) Educational support

SUBTOTAL for Community Services

6. Utilities

(a) Water systems

(b) Sewerage systems

(c) Electric power systems

(d) Natural gas systems

(e) Cable/telecommunications

SUBTOTAL for Utilities

7. Debt payments (include all
principal and interest)

(a) General Government

(b) Public safety

(c) Public services

(d) Community services

(e) Utilities

SUBTOTAL for Debt Payments

8. Bond insurance costs

9. Miscellaneous expenditures

SUBTOTAL Bond Ins & Misc Expenditures

SUBTOTAL Direct Expenditures by City

Salaries and

wages(a)

$89,241

$89,241

$161,574

$55,757

$174,502

$391,833

$858,203

Other operations
(b)

$85,999

$245,890

$331,889

$1,119,662

$233,248

$730,953

$2,083,863

$3,245,206

Please continue on next page
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Capital Outlay

Equipment, land
and existing
structures

$127,595

Construction (d)



Part VII - PENSION AND BENEFIT COSTS
FORM F-65(KY-3)0 - 09/2014

Personnel Expenditures

1. CERS non-hazardous $128,441

2. CERS hazardous

3. City pensions

4. Health insurance $164,197

5. All other employee benefits

SUBTOTAL Pension & Benefits $292,638

Part VIII - INDEBTEDNESS

List a summary oftotal city debtoutstanding at the beginning and end ofthe fiscal year. Include new debt incurred during the reporting
period. Segregate the total debt by revenue and general obligation bonds.

Activity

Outstanding
beginning FY

(a)

Issued

(b)

Retired

(c)

Outstanding
ending FY (d)

General

obligation (e)

Revenue

bonds

(f)

1. General governmental funds $102,894 $74,650 $29,541 $148,003 $148,003
2. Business type funds

(water, sewer, gas, electric) $5,441,949 $282,074 $5,159,875 $17,792 $5,142,083
3. Private activity bonds

(industrial revenue, non profits...) $0
4. Short-term debt

(All government funds)

(a) Beginning of fiscal year

(b) End of fiscal year

5. Interest paid on

(a) Water debt

(b) Electric debt

(c) Gas debt

(d) Transit debt

(b) All other debt

TOTAL Interest Paid

TOTAL Municipal Expenditures
Sum totals of Parts Vl and VII

1. Beginning of fiscal year

2. End of fiscal year

(a) Sinking funds

(b) Bond proceeds

(c) Other reserved funds

$164,634

$4,315

$168,949

$4,523,642

Part IX - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

$2,130,937

$164,250

(d) All non-reserved cash and investments $1,728,143

Finished
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3. Provide a copy of the organizational chart for Liberty's gas operations.

RESPONSE: A copy of the organizational chart for the City of Liberty is attached. The City

notes that the position ofPublic Works Superintendent is not filled. The two employees in the

Maintenance Worker III positions (Greg Rodgers and Darren Atwood) report directly to the

mayor.

WITNESS: Bridgett Blake
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4. Refer to Liberty's Response filed March 7, 2017 ("Response"), pages 1-2. Provide the

names, titles, and job duties for the five full-time employees who provide maintenance for

Liberty's gas operations, and provide the name and job duties for the director or superintendent

of Liberty's gas operations, ifhe or she is not one of the five full-time employees referenced

above.

RESPONSE: Greg Rodgers and Darren Atwood are classified within the Maintenance Worker

III position. Becausethere is no Public Works Superintendent, Rodgers and Atwood act as co-

managers of Liberty's gas operations. Jeff Wethington and Chris Dial are classified within the

MaintenanceWorker II position. Darrin Wesley is classified within the Maintenance Worker I

position. Their position's generalduties are describedin the attached documents. With respect

to the gas operations, these five individuals perform all field tasks related to the City's gas

distribution system when those tasks are performed by City employees.

WITNESS: Bridgett Blake
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CITY OF LIBERTY
POSITION DESCRIPTION

Class Title: Maintenance Worker III

Department: Public Works

Supervisor: PublicWorks Superintendent

Supervises: May Supervise Maintenance Workers in Lower Classes in the Absence ofthe
Public Works Superintendent

Class Characteristics: Assists the Department Director with activities and programs of the
department as requested. Supervise assigned personnei while performing required duties,
including skilied and semi-skilled work of a varied nature in theconstruction, instaliation,
maintenance and/pr cleanliness ofcity water plant, wastewater plant, utility lines, streets
and roads, parking lots, alleys, sidewalks, storm sewers, manholes, lift stations, culverts,
drainage ditches, street signs, barricades, etc.; performs related work as required.

Distinguishing Features of the Class: The work in this class involves assisting the Public
Works Superintendent with all public works functions of the city. Supervises assigned
Maintenance Workers as requested. Performs a variety ofskilled and semi-skilled work.
Work isphysically demanding, involving heavy lifting, shoveling, digging, and related work.

General Duties and Responsibilities (Illustrative OnlvV

Essential:

1. Assists the Public Works Superintendent with all activities ofthedepartment
as requested.

2. Supervises assigned personnei in the absence of the Public Works
Superintendent.

3. Assists with the construction, installation, maintenance and/or cleanliness of
all city streets and roads, water plant, wastewater plant, utility iines, parking lots, alleys,
sidewalks, storm sewers, manholes, lift stations, cuiverts, drainage ditches, street signs,
and barricades, etc.

4. Instails water and gas meters.
5. Pulls pumps at plants.
6. Reads water and gas meters on a scheduled basis; disconnects meters in

cases of deiinquent accounts.
7. Operates equipment needed to maintain/connect water and gas distribution

systems, wastewater collection systems, drainage ditches, stormsewers, culverts, etc.
8. Mows grass; cuts/trims trees and tree limbs; clears city right-of-way.
9. Removes snowfrom city streets, sidewalks, parking lots, etc.
10. Paints curbs and parking lots.
11. Operates departmental vehicles and equipment.
12. Pours concrete; makes forms.
13. Performs preventive maintenance on departmentai vehicles andequipment;
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Maintenance Worker III, Page 2

may perform mechanic duties ori all city vehicles and equipment.
14. Installs and repairs street signs, including traffic control signs, on all city streets.

15. Assists with maintaining inventory of equipment, spare parts and supplies for
the department.

16. Prepares and maintains required reports and records.

Non-essential: None.

DESIRABLE QUALIFICATIONS

Training and Experience: Graduation from high school or equivalent supplemented by
seven years work experience In public works or related field.

Special Knowledge. Skills and Abilities:

Knowledge:

1. Considerable knowledge of water and gas distribution systems, and
wastewater collection system.

2. Considerable knowledge of the methods and equipment used in departmental
activities.

3. Considerable knowledge of materials, methods and techniques utilized in
construction, maintenance and operation of departmental activities.

4. Considerable knowledge of work hazards and applicable safety precautions
associated with departmental equipment, vehicles, tools, and procedures.

5. Considerable knowledge of departmental rules and regulations.
6. Considerable knowledge of streets and water drainage systems within the

city.
7. Considerable knowledge of departmental equipment, vehicles and tools.
8. Considerable knowledge of the geography of the city.
9. Considerable knowledge of traffic control and traffic safety.
10. Considerable knowledge of record keeping requirements.

Abilities:

1. Ability to assist with the planning, organizing, directing, and evaluating the
activities of the department.

2. Ability to supervise assigned personnel while assisting with required duties.
3. Ability to operate departmental vehicles and equipment.
4. Ability to install water and gas meters.
5. Ability to accurately read and record usage information on water and gas

meters.

6. Ability to establish and maintain an effective working relationship with city
officers and employees, and the general public.

7. Ability to perform mechanical dutieson all city vehicles and equipment; ability
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Maintenance Worker ill, Page 3

to perform preventive maintenance on ail departmental equipment, vehicles and tools.
8. Ability to perform heavy labor for extended periods of time, often under

adverse weather conditions.
9. Possess mechanical aptitude, manual dexterity and good physical condition.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Instructions: Somewhat general; many aspects are covered specifically, but must
use own judgment most of the time.

Processes: Must occasionally consider different courses of action, or deviate from
standard operating procedures, to get the job done.

Review of Work: Work is generally reviewed through reports.

Analvtical Requirements: Problems generally require analysis based on precedent.

Tools. Equipment and Vehicles Used: Heavy equipment (loaders, backhoe, trucks,
tractors, mowers, jack hammer, salt spreader,); vehicles; departmental hand tools.

Phvsical Requirements of the Job: Work is performed both indoors and outdoors;
however, most work is completed outdoors regardless of weather conditions. Must lift
heavy objects (more than 25 pounds); must operate vehicle and equipment as a job
requirement; exposed to machineryand its moving parts; exposed to high places, confined
spaces; must use ladders and stairs; exposed to fumes, chemicals and toxic substances.

Contacts: Frequent public and internal contacts requiring tact and dipiomacy are
requirements of the job.

Confidential Information: Limited use of confidential information.

Mental Effort: Moderate/heavy.

Interruptions: Frequent.

Speciai Licensing Requirements: Must possess and maintain valid commercial
drivers license issued by the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

Availability: Must be able to respond to calls at all hours.

Certification Requirements: May be required to obtain Class II Distribution License
issued by the Commonwealth of Kentucky. Membership in American Public Works
Association and attendance at training programs and seminars preferred, but not required.

Additional Requirements: Must meet job-related physical and psychological
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Maintenance Worker III, Page 4

requirements In effect at the time ofappointment, and must pass anyjob-related mental,
psychological and/orphysical qualifying examination that may be prescribed.

Drug Testing: Must participate in mandatory drug testing as a condition of
employment In the class.

Overtime Provision: Non-exempt.
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CITY OF LIBERTY

POSITION DESCRIPTION

Class Title: Maintenance Worker II

Department: Public Works

Supervisor: Public Works Superintendent

Supervises: Mqy Supervise Assigned Maintenance Workers In the Absence ofa Higher
Authority

Class Characteristics: Assists the Department Director with activities and programs ofthe
department as requested. May supervise assigned personnel while performing required
duties, Including manual skilled work of a varied nature In the construction, Installation,
maintenance and/or cleanliness of city utility lines, streets and roads, parking lots, alleys,
sidewalks, storm sewers, manholes, lift stations, culverts, drainage ditches, street signs,
barricades, etc.; performs related workas required.

Dlstinaulshlnq Features ofthe Class: The work In this class Involves assisting the Public
Works Superintendent with all public works functions ofthe city. May supervise assigned
MaintenanceWorkers. Performs a varietyof manual and semi-skilled labor of routine and
moderate difficulty. Work Is physically demanding. Involving heavy lifting, shoveling,
digging, and related work.

General Duties and Responsibilities (Illustrative OnlvV

Essential:

1. Assists the Public Works Superintendent with all activities ofthe department
as requested.

2. May supervise assigned personnel In the absence ofa higher authority.
3. Assists with the construction. Installation, maintenance and/or cleanliness of

all city streets and roads, utility lines, parking lots, alleys, sidewalks, storm sewers,
manholes, lift stations, culverts, drainage ditches, street signs, and barricades, etc.

4. Installs water and gas meters.
5. Reads water and gas meters on a scheduled basis; disconnects, meters In

cases of delinquent accounts.
6. Operates equipment needed to maintain/connect water and gas distribution

systems, wastewater collection systems, drainage ditches, storm sewers, culverts, etc.
7. Mows grass; cuts/trims trees and tree limbs; clears city right-of-way.
8. Removes snow from citystreets, sidewalks, parking lots, etc.
9. Paints curbs and parking lots.
10. Operates departmental vehicles and equipment.
11. Pours concrete; makes forms.
12. Performs preventive maintenance on departmental vehicles and equipment;

may perform mechanic duties on all cityvehicles and equipment.
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; 13. Installs and repairs street signs, including traffic control signs, on all city
streets.

' 14. Assists with maintaining inventory of equipment, spare parts and supplies for
the department.

15. Prepares and maintains required reports and records.

I Non-essential: None. i

DESIRABLE QUALIFICATIONS

Training and Experience: Graduation from high school or equivalent supplemented by
three years work experience in publicworks or related field.

Special Knowledge. Skills and Abilities:

Knowledge:

1. Thorough knowledge ofwater and gas distribution systems, and wastewater
collection system.

2. Thorough knowledge ofthe methods and equipment used in departmental
activities.

3. Thorough knowledge of materials, methods and techniques utilized in
construction, maintenance and operation of departmental activities.

4. Knowledge ofwork hazards and applicable safety precautions associated
with departmental equipment, vehicles, tools, and procedures.

5. Thorough knowledge ofdepartmental rules and regulations.
6. Thorough knowledge of streets and water drainage systems within the city.
7. Thorough knowledge of departmental equipment, vehicles and tools.
8. Thorough knowledge of the geography ofthe city.
9. Thorough knowledge oftraffic control and traffic safety.
10. Thorough knowledge of record keeping requirements.

Abilities:

1. Ability to assist with the planning, organizing, directing, and evaluating the
activities of the department.

2. Ability to operate departmental vehicles and equipment.
3. Ability to install water and gas meters.
4. Ability to accurately read and record usage information on water and gas

meters.

5. Ability to establish and maintain an effective working relationship with city
officers and employees, and the general public.

6. Ability to perform mechanical duties on all city vehicles and equipment; ability
to perform preventive maintenance on all departmental equipment, vehicles and tools.
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7. Ability to perform heavy labor for extended periods of time, often under
adverse weather conditions.

8. Possess mechanical aptitude, manual dexterity and good physical condition.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Instructions: Somewhat general; many aspects are covered specifically, but must
use own judgment most of the time.

Processes: Must occasionally consider differentcourses of action, or deviate from
standard operating procedures; to get the job done.

I

Review of Work: Work is generally reviewed through reports.

Analytical Requirements: Problems generally require analysis based on precedent.

Tools. Equipment and Vehicles Used: Heavy equipment (loaders, backhoe, trucks,
tractors, mowers, jack hammer, salt spreader,); vehicles; departmental hand tools.

Phvsical Requirements ofthe Job: Work |s performed both indoors and outdoors;
however, most work is completed outdoors regardless of weather conditions. Must lift
heavy objects (more than 25 pounds); must operate vehicle and equipment as a job
requirement; exposed to machinery and its moving parts; exposed to high places, confined
spaces; must use ladders and stairs; exposed tofumes, chemicals and toxic substances.

Contacts: Frequent public and internal contacts requiring tact and diplomacy are
requirements of the job.

Confidential Information: Limited use of confidential information.

Mental Effort: Moderate/heavy.

Interruptions: Frequent.

Special Licensing Requirements: Must possess and maintain valid commercial
drivers license issued by the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

Availabilitv: Must be able to respond to calls at all hours.

Certification Requirements: May be required to obtain Class II Distribution License
issued by the Commonwealth of Kentucky. Membership in American Public Works
Association and attendance at training programs and seminars preferred, but not required.

Additional Requirements: Must meet job-related physical and psychological
requirements in effect at the time ofappointment, and must pass any job-related mental,
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psychological and/or physical qualifying examination that may be prescribed.

Drug Testino: Must participate in mandatory drug testing as a condition of
empioyment in the class.

Overtime Provision: Non-exempt.
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CITY OF LIBERTY

POSITION DESCRIPTION

Class Title: Maintenance Worker I

Department: Public Works

Supervisor: Public Works Superintendent

Supervises: None.

Class Characteristics: Assists the Department Director with activities and programs ofthe
department as requested. Performs required duties, including manual skilled work of a
varied nature in theconstruction, installation, maintenance and/or cleanliness ofcity utility
lines, streets and roads, parking lots, alleys, sidewalks, storm sewers, manholes, lift
stations, culverts, drainage ditches, street signs, barricades, etc. After three years related
experience, may be promoted to Maintenance worker il upon recommendation of the
Department Director and approval ofthe Mayor. Performs related work as required.

Distinouishino Features of the Class: The work in this class involves assisting the Public
Works Superintendent with ail public works functions of the city. Performs a variety of
manual and semi-skilled labor of routine and moderate difficulty. Work is physically
demanding, involving heavy lifting, shoveling, digging, and related work.

General Duties and Responsibilities flilustrative OnlyV

Essential:

1. Assists the Public Works Superintendentwith all activities of the department
as requested.

2. Assists with the construction, installation, maintenance and/or cleanliness of
ail city streets and roads, utility lines, parking lots, alleys, sidewalks, storm sewers,
manholes, lift stations; culverts, drainage ditches, street signs, and barricades, etc.

3. Installs water and gas meters.
4. Reads water and gas meters on a scheduled basis; disconnects meters in

cases of delinquent accounts.
5. Operates equiprnent needed to maintain/connect water and gas distribution

systems, wastewater collection systems, drainage ditches, storm sewers, culverts, etc.
6. Mows grass; cuts/trimstrees and tree limbs; clears city right-of-way.
7. Removes snow from city streets, sidewalks, parking lots, etc.
8. Paints curbs and parking lots,
9. Operates departmental vehicles and equipment.
10. Pours concrete; makes forms.
11. Performs preventive maintenance on departmental vehicles and equipment;

may perform mechanic duties on all city vehicles and equipment.
12. installs and repairs street signs, including traffic control signs, on all city

streets.
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13. Assists with maintaining inventory ofequipment, spare parts andsupplies for
the department.

14. Prepares and maintains required reports and records.

Non-essential: None.

DESIRABLE QUALIFICATIONS

Training and Exoerience: Graduation from high school or equivalent; no previous work
experience requirements.

Special Knowledge. Skills and Abilities:

Knowledge:

1. Knowledge of, or ability to learn, water and gas distribution systems, and
wastewater collection system.

2. Knowledge of, or ability to learn, the methods and equipment used in
departmental activities.

3. Knowledge of, or ability to learn, materials, methods and techniques utilized
in construction, maintenance and operation of departmentai activities.

4. Knowledge of work hazards and applicable safety precautions associated
with departmental equipment, vehicles, tools, and procedures.

5. Knowledge of, or ability to learn, departmental rules and regulations.
6. Knowledge of, or ability to learn, streets and water drainage systems within

the city.
7. Knowledgeof,or ability to learn, departmental equipment, vehicles and tools.
8. Knowledge of, or ability to learn, the geography of the city.
9. Knowledge of, or ability to learn, traffic control and traffic safety.
10. Knowledge of, or ability to learn, record keeping requirements.

Abilities:

1. Ability to assist with the planning, organizing, directing, and evaluating the
activities of the department.

2. Ability to operate departmentalvehicles and equipmentafter receiving proper
training.

3. Ability to install water and gas meters.
4. Ability to accurately read and record usage information on water and gas

meters.

5. Ability to establish and maintain an effective working relationship with city
officers and employees, and the general public.

6. Ability to perform mechanicalduties on all city vehicles and equipment; ability
to perform preventive maintenance on all departmental equipment, vehicles and tools.

7. Ability to perform heavy labor for extended periods of time, often under
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diverse weather conditions.
8. Possess mechanical aptitude, manual dexterity and good physical condition.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Instructions: Instructions are Initially very specific, but become more general with
additional work experience.

Processes: Must occasionally consider different courses of action, or deviate from
standard operating procedures, to get the job done.

Review ofWork: Work Is Initially closely reviewed, but becomes more general with
additional work experience.

Analytical Requirements: Problems generally require analysis based on precedent.

Tools. Equipment andVehicles Used: Heavy equipment (loaders, backhoe, trucks,
tractors, mowers, jack hammer, salt spreader,); vehicles; departmental hand tools;

Phvslcal Reoulrements ofthe Job: Work Is performed both Indoors and outdoors;
however, most work Is completed outdoors regardless of weather conditions. Must lift
heavy objects (more than 25 pounds); must operate vehicle and equipment as a job
requirement; exposed to machinery and Its moving parts; exposed to high places, confined
spaces; must use ladders and stairs; exposed to fumes, chemicals and toxic substances.

Contacts: Frequent public and Internal contacts requiring tact and diplomacy are
requirements of the job.

Confidential Information: Limited use of confidential Infornriatlon.

Mental Effort: Moderate/heavy.

Interruptions: Frequent,

Soeclal Llcenslno Reoulrements: Must possess and maintain valid commercial
drivers license Issued by the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

Avallabllltv: Must be able to respond to calls at all hours.

Certification Reoulrements: Membership In American Public WorksAssociation and
attendance at training programs and seminars preferred, but not required.

Additional Reoulrements: Must meet job-related physical and psychological
requirements In effectat the time of appointment, and must pass any job-related mental,
psychological and/or physical qualifying examination that may be prescribed.
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Drug Testing: Must participate in mandatory drug testing as a condition of i
employment in the class.

Overtime Provision: Non-exempt.
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5. Provide the name, title, and job duty of each employee responsible for ensuring the

compliance ofLiberty's gas operations with leakage survey requirements.

RESPONSE: Ultimately, the City itself is responsible for ensuring the compliance of Liberty's

gas operations with leakage survey requirements. Liberty Mayor Brown has designated City

Clerk Bridgett Blake as the primary City employee to ensure that leakage surveys are performed

within proper time limit and proper records are maintained. She will work collaboratively with

the City employees who work on the gas distribution system to schedule leakage surveys by

Heath Consultants or other qualified individuals. The City Clerk's general duties are described

in the attached document.

WITNESS: Bridgett Blake



CITY OF LIBERTY

POSITION DESCRIPTION

Class Title: City Clerk/Treasurer

Department: Administration

Supervisor: Mayor

Supervises: None.

Class Characteristics: Under the general direction of the Mayor, serves as City Clerk for
the city: performs accounts payable functions for the city; serves as Payroll/Personnel
Officer; performs related work as required.

Distinguishing Features of the Class: The work in this class involves responsibility for
performing professional functions within the office, including preparing agenda and
attending all meetings of the CityCouncil, maintaining all records of the city not assigned
to another office; financial management activities, etc. The work requires considerable
discretion and independent judgment in planning, coordinating and directing activities
within the framework of established policy and applicable laws and ordinances. May
assume responsibility for the department in the absence of the Mayor. Work is performed
under the administrative direction of the Mayor, who reviews work performance through
evaluation of reports and results, analysis of complaints, and personal preference.

General Duties and Responsibilities fIllustrative Onlv):

Essential:

1 Prepares agenda for and attends all regular and special Council meetings.
2. Advertises special Council meetings.
3. Prepares and maintains complete and accurate minutes of Council

proceedings, and records them in appropriate books.
4. Files and maintains all permanent records of the city.
5. Serves as custodian of the Seal of the City.
6. Insures that all ordinances meet publication requirements.
7. Insures that ordinances are indexed or codified as required.
8. Types minutes, ordinances, resolutions, reports, correspondence, licenses,

permits, etc.
9. Accepts telephone calls and receives visitors at office, listens to problems,

complaints or information requests, and handles personally or directs to department or
individual for appropriate action.

10. Assists in preparation and administration of annual budget; prepares
financial records for computer Input.

11. Prepares and/or proofs and forwards notices for property taxes and other
licenses and fees; collects payment for taxes, licenses, permits and fees; prepares
licenses or permits after receipt of payment.
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12. Maintains petty cash fund for the city.
13. Administers law enforcement incentive program for Police Department.
14. Opens and processes mail.
15. Prepares bank deposits for all revenues except utility services.
16. Balances cash drawer daily.
17. Performs accounts payable functions for the city, including reviewing all

invoices, preparing checks, and insuring that bills and receipts reconcile with each account
balance.

18. Prepares sales and utility tax reports.
19. Issues purchase orders; maintains files for each.
20. Reconciles bank statements to general ledger.
21. Recommends investment of excess funds.
22. Prepares and distributes payroll checks; prepares and forwards required

payroll-related reports.
23. Maintains personnel files for all city departments.
24. Administers employee benefits program.

- Reviews empleyeertime eards-for- aeeuraeyrprepares-and distributes payroll;
forwards payments and reports to state and federal agencies on scheduled basis.

26. Maintains personnel file on each employee; administers employee benefits
program; accrues leave benefits; administers worker's compensation and unemployment
programs; insures confidentiality of personnel records.

27. Assists with grants writing and administration.
28. Assists Utility Clerk with all duties and responsibilities as requested.
29. May attend meetings on behalf of the Mayorand/or Council.
30. Monitors delinquent property taxes; prepares and mails notices of legal

action.

31. Works with computer hardware and software vendors for the city.

- Non-essentiair- - — - - -

1. Prepares agenda for Glenwood Cemetery meetings; attends all cemetery
related meetings; prepares minutes of meetings; records cemetery plots; collects and
deposits money for-cemeteny-plots; prepares~quarterIy Glenwood Cemetery documents.

2. Prepares agenda for Planning Commission Zoning Issues and forwards to
zoning officers; attends meetings; prepares minutes of meetings.

3. Attends meetings and prepares/maintains records of special projects.

DESIMBLE QUALIFICATIONS •

Trainino and Experience: Graduation from high school or equivalent supplemented byfive
years work experience in an office setting; additional educationmay be substitutedforwork
experience requirements on a year-for-year basis up to a maximum of two years.

Special Knowledge. Skills and Abilities:
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City Clerk/Treasurer, Page 3

Knowledge:

1. Thorough knowledge of the legal requirements relating to the recording and
preservation of official minutes and records.

2. Thorough knowledge of parliamentary procedures for Council meetings.
3. Thorough knowledge of public administration theories and practices.
4. Thorough knowledge of federal, state and local laws, administrative

regulations, and ordinances relating to localgovernment operations,
5. Thorough knowledge of financial management principles, practices and

regulations.
6. Knowledge of modern office practices, procedures, equipment, and record

keeping systems.
7. Knowledge of banking procedures.

Skills:

1. Exceptional skill in working with the public.
2. Excellent communication skills.
3. Decision making skills.
4. Skill in working with computer hardware and software.

Abilities:

1. Ability to record and transcribe minutes of meetings.
2. Ability to prepare minutes, ordinances,orders, resolutions, correspondence,

reports, forms, etc., from rough draft.
3. Ability to maintain important records efficiently and accurately in compliance

with federal, state and local laws, administrative regulations, and ordinances.
4. Ability to prepare and maintain financial records.
5. Ability to type efficiently and accurately..
6. Ability to make mathematical computations accurately.
7. Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with city

officials, employees, and the general public.
8. Analytical abilities. Thoroughness. Resourcefulness. Courtesy. Firmness.

Tact. Orderliness. Sound judgment. Integrity.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Instructions: Very general; must use own judgment most of the time.

Processes: Mustoccasionallyconsider different courses of action, or deviate from
standard procedures, to get the work done.

Review of Work: Work is generally not reviewed, except for approval of minutes.
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City Clerk/Treasurer, Page 4

Analytical Requirements: Assignments involve decisions based on a wide
knowledge of many factors where application of advanced or technical concepts are
required.

Tools. Equipment and Vehicles •Used: Normal office equipment, including
telephone, computer, typewriter, fax machine, copier, etc.

Physical Reouirements of the Job: Work is typically performed in an office sitting
at a desk or table; lifting light objects of less than 25 pounds is a requirement of the job.

Contacts: Frequent public and internal contacts requiring tact and diplomacy are
requirements of the job.

Confidential information: Regular use of confidential information.

Mental Effort: Moderate/heavy.

Interruptions: Constant.

Special Licensing Requirements: Must possess and maintain a valid drivers license.

Availability: Must be able to attend meetings at irregular hours.

Certification Requirements: Mustcomplete Municipal Clerks Certification Program
as approved by the international Institute of Municipal Clerks within five years after
appointment to the class.

Additional Requirements: Must be bonded.

Drug Testing: Must participate in mandatory drug testing as a condition of
employment in the class.

Qvertimfr Provision: Non-exempt. - - -
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6. Refer to the Response, page 2, footnote 1. Explain why Liberty states that it is possible

that Ronnie Wesley, the then-lead operator, performed leakage surveys for Liberty's gas

operations prior to his death in 2014.

RESPONSE: The underlying faets show that a Commission inspector specifically found that the

City complied with periodie-leak-survey requirements in March 2012. In 2015, a Commission

inspector noted that the City had not conducted a leakage survey since 2009. The City admits

that it does not have records of a leakage survey performed during this time period. In an

attempt to provide one possible explanation for the discrepancy between the two Commission-

inspection reports and the lack of documentation or knowledge of a leakage survey by the City,

the City mentioned that it was possible that the City's former lead operator, Ronnie Wesley,

performed leakage surveys on the City's systemprior to his death in 2014. As previouslystated

by the City, it has not located any records to demonstrate that Wesley or any other person

performed leakage surveys. In its Response, the City merely wantedto offer one possible

explanation as to why a Commission inspectorwould find that there were no deficiencies related

to the City's gas system in 2012.

WITNESS: Bridgett Blake



7. Referto the Response, page 2, footnote 1, in whichLiberty states"The Cityhas reports

ofregular patrols of the gas system, which are designed to locate leaks." In its response to data

requests contained in an appendix to an Order entered December 1,2016, in Case No. 2016-

00391, Liberty stated, "No instruments were used during theirpatrolling" in regard to patrols

conducted by employees of Liberty's gas operations in 2012 through 2014. Explain whyLiberty

statesthat regularpatrols are designed to locate leaks andhow any leaks are detected if no

instruments are used during the patrols.

RESPONSE: Patrolling is performed to discover potential gas leaks and other factors that can

affect safety and operation of the gas system. By observing surface conditions above the

distribution system, individuals cannotice certain conditions thatmaysuggest a gas leak is

present. Possible signs that a gas leak may bepresent include dead grass or other vegetation;

dust, dirt, or debris beingblowninto the air from the ground; the hissing noiseof a leak; or a

noticeable smell from odorant added to natural gas. In addition, individuals may learn about

construction activity of which theywere previously unaware andthat could negatively impact.

To the extentthat observations during patrolling result in the belief that a gas leak may be

present, testingand necessary repairs are performed.

WITNESS: Bridgett Blake



8. Refer to the Response, page 3. Provide a copy of Liberty's contract with Heath Consultants,

Inc. to perform leakage surveys in 2017.

RESPONSE: A copy of Liberty's contract with Heath Consultants, Inc. ("Heath") to perform

leakage surveys in 2017 is attached. Liberty signed the contract with Heath in 2016. It has an

option to renew that can be unilaterally exercised by Liberty. ("Under this agreement. Client

will have the option to renew the Agreement on a year-to-year basis by completing and returning

the Option to Renew attachedhereto.") The City executed the Option to Renew and returned it

to Heath at the same time that it returned the original contract. City Clerk Bridgett Blake has

contacted Heath Consultants and requested a leakage survey to be conducted in early August

2017. As of the date of this response, the City is waiting for Heath to provide the specific dates

of the leakage survey to be conducted.

WITNESS: Bridgett Blake



SERVICES AGREEMENT ^INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS

This Services Agreement ("Agreement"), effective June 3, 2016, is between Liberty Gas
Company, ("Client") and Heath Consultants Incorporated("Contractor").

SECTION ONE-SCOPE OF WORK:

The work to be performed by Contractor will be set forth in Exhibit A, Scope of Work,

SECTION TWO-PRICE/PAYMENT:

Client will pay Contractor for work performed as.set forth in Exhibit B, Price Schedule.
Heath Consultants Incorporated reserves the fight to invoice the client for additional items
required, but not disclosed in the RFP/Quote process as an additional pass through cost to the
client as agreed to by both parties. Terms are Net 30 days.

SECTION THREE-RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES:

The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created by this
Agreement. Perforitiance and control of the work will lie solely with Contractor. The Contractor
is not to be considered an agent or employee of Clientfor any purpose.

SECTION FOUR-CONTRACTOR'S EMPLOYEES QUALIFIED TO PERFORM THE WORK

REQUIRED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT UNDER SUBPART N OF SECTION 192 OF THE

FEDERAL PIPELINE SAFETY REGULATIONS/WARRANTIES

Contractor warrants and represents that it has an Operator Qualification Program as
required by Subpait N of Section 192 of the Federal Pipeline Safety Regulations and that the
employees who will perform the Work required under this Agreement have been evaluated and
are qualified to perform the tasks required under this Agreement.

SECTION FIVE-INSURANCE TO BE SECURED:

Contractor agrees to maintain such insurance acceptable to Client as set forth on Exhibit
C, Insurance Requirements.

SECTION SIX-INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor shall indemnify and hold Client and its agents, employees, partners, parents,
subsidiaries, insurers and affiliates harmless from any losses, costs, claims (including claims of
Contractor's employees), expenses (including attorneys" fees and court costs), suits, actions,
judgments, fines, penalties or damages of every nature and description (collectively "'losses")
arising out of or resulting from the Contractor's Work under this Agreement, except that
Contractor's obligation to indemnify Client shall not apply to any losses or liabilities arising
from Client's sole negligence, or that portion, of any liabilities that arise out of Client's
contributing negligent acts or negligent omissions.

Client shall indemnify and hold Contractor and its agents, employees, partners., parents,
subsidiaries, insurers and affiliates harmless from any losses, costs, claims (including claims of



Client's employees), expenses (including attorneys' fees and coun costs), suits, actions,
judgments, firies, penalties or damages of every nature and description (collectively "losses")
arising out of or alleged to arise out of the action or inaction of Client in connection with the
Work under this Agreement except that Client's obligation to indemnify Contractor shall not
apply to any losses or liabilities arising from Contractor's sole negligence, or that portion of any
liabilities that arise out of Contractor's contributing negligent acts or negligent omissions.

This indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or termination of the
Agreement.

This indemnification obligation shall e.xtend to all costs, expenses and damages arising
from any infringement, misappropriation or claim of infringement or misappropriation of any
process, product, apparatus or combination patent resulting from the use of any designs or other
information furnished by the other party and incorporated in the Work or Ancillary Work.

SECTION SEVEM-CQMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND SAFETY REOIJIREMEN'TS:

All Work will be performed in accordance with the Federal.Pipeline Safety Regulations,
NFPA 58 and all applicable propane and pipeline industry safety practices and standards, and in
accordance with federal, state and local statutes, rules regulations and ordinances.

SECTION EIGHT-DURATION/RENEWAL/CANCEI.EATION:

This Agreement expires December 31. 2016. Under this agreement. Client will have the
option to renew the Agreement on a year-to-year basis bycompleting and returning the Option to
Renew attached hereto. Client or Contractor may cancel the Agreement upon one (1) week's
advance notice. In the event this Agreement is terminated under the foregoing provision. Client
shall pay Contractor any amounts due for Work performed by Contractor and/or materials or
supplies ordered prior to the date that the termination notice is provided to the non-terminating
party.

SECTION NINE-CONFIDENTIALITY:

Contractor will not disclose to third parties any information concerning its work for
Client, including, but not limited to. Confidential or trade secret information or information
regarding Client's customers or potential customers, business and marketing plans, customer
lists, credit information, gas usage patterns, pricing and marketing policies and practices,
financial information and other operating policies and procedures. Contractor understands that if
it violates thisAgreement. Client will suffer irreparable harm. Therefore, in addition to any other
remedies available to it. Client will be entitled to seek and obtain injunctive or equitable relief,
includingorders prohibiting violations of this Agreement.

Client will not disclose to third parties any information concerning its work with
Contractor, including, but not limited to, conlldential or trade secret information or information,
busines.s and marketing plans, customer lists, credit information, pricing and marketing policies
and practices, financial information and other operating policies and procedures. Client
understands that if it violates this Agreement. Contractorwill suffer irreparable hann. Therefore,
in addition to any other remedies available to it. Contractor will be entitled to seek and obtain
injunctive or equitable relief, including orders prohibiting violations of this agreement.

2
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SECTION TEN^MISCELLANEQl IS:

(a) Waiver. Neither the failure nor any delay on the partof either party to exercise
any right, remedy, power or privilege under this Agreement shall operate as a
waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power
or privilege preclude any other or further exercise of the same or of any other
right, remedy, power or privilege, nor shall any waiver of any right, remedy,
power or privilege with respect to any occurrence be construed as a waiver of
such right, remedy, power or privilege with respect to any other occurrence. No
waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and is signed by the party asserted
to have granted such waiver.

(b) Binding Nature of Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure
to the benefit of Client and its successors and assigns and shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of Contractor, its successors and assigns.

(c) Provisions Separable. The provisions of this Agreement are independent of and
separable from each other, and no provision shall be affected or rendered invalid
or unenforceable by virtue of the fact that for any reason any other or othem of
them may be invalid or unenforceable in wholeor in part

(d) Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire understanding among the
parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior
and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, inducements or conditions,
express or implied, oral or written, except as herein contained. Theexpress terms
hereof control and supersede any course of performance and/or usage of the trade
inconsistent with any of the terms hereof. This Agreement may not be modified
or amended other than by an agreement in writing.

(e) Paragraph Headings. The paragraph headings in this Agreement are for
convenience only: they form no part of this Agreement and shall not affect its
interpretation.

(f) Gender. Etc. Words used herein, regardless ofthe number and gender specifically
used, shall be deemed and construed to include any other number, singular or
plural, and any other gender, masculine, feminine or neuter,, as the context
indicates is appropriate.

(g) Number of Davs. In computing the number of days for purposes of this
Agreement, all days shall be counted, including Saturdays, Sundays and holidays;
provided, however, that if the final day of any time period falls on a Saturday,
Sunday or holiday on which federal banks are or may elect to be closed, then the
final day shall be deemed to be the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or
holiday.

(h) This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original for all purposes and all of which shall be deemed collectively
to be one agreement. The parties agree that execution of this Agreement by a

3
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party and the delivery of such party's signature by mail, facsimile transmission, or
electronic (e-mail) transmission shall be fully effective as the original signature of
such party to the fullest extent as if it were the original copy thereof.

(i) This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of
the State of Texas. Venue of any dispute shall lie in Harris County. Texas.

SECTION ELEVF.N-FORCE MA-IEURE

Neither party hereto shall be liable for any failure to perform the terms of this Agreement
when such a failure is due to "force majeure" as hereinafter defined. The term "force majeure" as
used in this Agreement shall mean any delay or default in performance due to any cause beyond
the control of the party claiming force majeure and without such party's fault or negligence,
including but not restricted to acts of God or the public, civil disturbances, arrests and restraints
by rulers and people; acts of the public enemy, wars, riots, insurrections, sabotage: acts, requests
or interruptions of the federal, state or local government or any agency thereof; court orders,
present and future valid orders of any governmental authority, or nay officer, agency or any
instrumentality thereof; floods, fires, storms, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes,
washouts, explosions, quarantine, strikes, lockouts, or industrial disturbances; interruption of
transportation, freight embargos or delays in delivery of equipment or service necessary to the
performance of any provision of this Agreement; inability to secure right of way, labor shortages,
breakage or accident to machinery or lines of pipe, or any other cause, whether of the kind herein
enumerated or otherwise, not reasonable within the control of the party claiming force majeure.
Nothing contained in this section, however, shall be construed to require cither party to settle a
labor dispute against its will.

If as a result of force majeure wither party is unable, wholly or in part, to carryoul its
obligation under this Agreement, other than the obligation to make payment of moneydue, then,
upon such party's giving notice and a description of such cause in writing to the other party as
soon as possible after the occurrence of the cause, the obligation of the party giving such notice,
so far as it is affected by the cause specified in such notice, shall be suspended for the duration of
the cause. Such cause shall, as far as possible, be remedied with all reasonable dispatch.

SECTION TWELVE-NOTICES

All notices, except verbal or email notices with respect to minor questions, shall be in
writing and shall be delivered by United States first class mail, postage prepaid, personal
delivery, facsimile (with printed conflrmation). electronic transmission (e-mail) or nationally
recognized overnight carrier to the appropriate party using the following respective addresses;

For Client: Liberty Gas Company
Bridgctt Blake
P.O. Box 127

Liberty. KY 42539
Phone: 606-787-9973

Email; LIBERTYBB u WINDSTREAM.NF.T

REV 0.t28l6



ForContractor: Heath Consultants Incorporated
9030 Monroe Road

Houston, Texas 77061
Attention: Gary Lape, VicePresident-Operations
Phone: 713-844-1303

Email: contracisadinin@heatlius.com

All notices ^all be effective on the party addressee from the time received by such party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year
shown beneath their signatures.

/

WITNESS:

WITNESS:

HEATH CONSULTANTS INCORPORATED

Name: Gary Lape (Print)

Title: VP Operations
Thereunto duly authorized

Date: _—^^

LIBERTY GAS COMPANY

Name:

itie: jiAifBfTitle:

Thereuntoduly authorized

Date: JJdlH

.(Print)

-(Print)

.(Print)

PLEASERETURNEXECUTED CONTRACT TO: cvntraclsailmh:(cuheatluis.cnm

-OR-

by mall to Contracts Atfinlnistraior, Heath Consultants Incorporaled, 9030 Monroe Rd., Houston, TX 7706J
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Optioti (ii lU'nw

Client hciehy exercises its option to renew its Independent Contractor Agreement
between itself and . Dated
for one (I) year ending on .

WITNESS:

'-)

WITNCSS:

HEATH CONSUi. JAMS INCORPORATED

BY:

Signature

Name:

Title:
rhercunlo duly authorized

Date:

LIBKRTV CAS COMPANY

BY:

Signature

Name:

Title: /vliJih
Thereunto dufy authorized

Date: Vttllillh

J Print)

_(Print)

.(Print)

_(Print)

Pl.liASk Kh:H R\ t\t( VTU)COMHAC r ro. . y/zW ......

OK

by mailla Cniiirart\ 4iimiiihtrainr. tlemli ('imatlraHl.1 Inmrpotaiyil. WW Mnnrw Kd.. llimMtm. TV 77/M/

(I
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EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK

Leak Survey of Facilities, to include leakage inspection and leakage classification. The
inspection will be performed with the use of a DP-IR™, or an RMLD-IS®. All leaks are
classifiedwith the use of a Combustible Gas Indicator to GPTC Standards. All leakage and
Abnormal Operating Conditions wUI be documented and reported to the client on Heath
forms.

Heath Consultants Incorporated willprovide one fully trained and Operator Qualified
Technician,along with transportation and all equipment required to perform the Leak
Survey, including but not limited tOj Heath Consultants Incorporated DP-IR™, RMLD-
IS®, Combustible Gas Indicator, and PlungerBar.

REV 032816



EXHIBIT B

PRICE SCHEDULE

The price for this service will be $75 per hour per Technician and $75 per hour for
drive time to and from the project (portal to portal). This price is inclusive of ail
technician, equipment, vehicle and administrative costs.

See attached Proposal Letter

REV 032816



EXHIRTT C

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

PLEASE SEE ATTACHED HEATH STANDARD CERTIFICATES.
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9. Refer to the Response, page 3. Provide doeumentation of the "extra steps" Liberty has

taken to ensure complianee with federal leakage survey requirements and identify who is

responsible for aeting upon eaeh step.

RESPONSE: As stated in its Response, the City has taken extra steps to ensure that similar

problems do not occur in the future. The City has contracted with Heath to perform leakage

surveys. The City has evidenced its desire to maintain an annual inspection by exercising its

Option to Renew on the contract with Heath. City Clerk Bridgett Blake has been and will

continue to be the primary City employee responsible for coordinating with Heath.

The City has developed a calendaring system, whereby eaeh of the utility maintenance

employees has access to a calendar that displays deadlines for required inspections, tasks, and

after-action reports. This calendar will add transparency within the department to ensure that

requirements are completed in a timely fashion. (A copy of the calendar is attached.) In

addition, eaeh operator has been provided a binder that includes this calendar, relevant forms, the

operations and maintenance plan, and the emergency plan. The calendaring system and

distribution ofbinders were designed to ensure future compliance. The City Clerk will work

collaboratively with the manager(s) of the gas system to ensure that the calendar and binders are

updated as necessary.

WITNESS: Bridgett Blake



July 2016

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 1
1 2

3 4
Independence Day

5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

26 27 28 29 30



August 2016

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 5

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

26 27

28 29 30 31



September 2016

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 5

4 5
Labor Day

6
Critical Valve

Inspection

7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

24

25 26
Patrolling -
Business Districts

and Outside

Business Districts

27 28 29 30
Corrosion Control -

Cathodic Protection

Schedule Regulator Inspections with Cox Meter Service



October 2016

Sun Men Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10
Columbus Day

11 12 13 14
Odorant Monitoring

15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 27 25
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

26 27 28 29

30 31



November 2016

Sun Men Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 Veterans Day 12

13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17 18 19

20 21 18 23
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

24 25 26

27 28 29 30



December 2016

Sun Men Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

24

25
Christmas

26
Patrolling -
Business Districts

27 28 29 30 31



January 2017

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2
Public Awareness

Notices (BB)

3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16
Odorant Monitoring

17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

26 27 28

29 30 31



February 2017

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

25

26 27 28



March 2017

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1
EIA-176 Report Due
(BB)

2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14
Odorant Monitoring

15
Annual Gas Report
Due (BB)

16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

25

26 27
Patrolling -
Business Districts

and Outside

Business Districts

28 29 30 31

*Call and schedule Leakage Survey on Business District with Heath Consultants for July 2017*



April 2017

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14
Odorant Monitoring

15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

26 27 28 29

30



May 2017

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

26 27

28 29 30 31



June 2017

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

24

25 26
Patrolling -
Business Districts

27 28 29 Review O&M &
Emergence Plan
(BB)

30

July 2017 - Public Awareness Notices (BB)



July 2017

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14
Odorant Monitoring

15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

29

30 31



August 2017

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

26

27 28 29 30 31



September 2017

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2

3 4 5
Critical Valve

Inspection

6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16

17 18 19 20 21 22
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

23

24 25
Patrolling -
Business Districts

and Outside

Business Districts

26 27 28 29
Corrosion Control -

Cathodic Protection

30

Schedule Regulator inspections with Cox Meter Service



October 2017

Sun Men Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16
Odorant Monitoring

17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

28

29 30 31



November 2017

Sun Men Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

25

26 27 28 29 30



December 2017

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

30

31



January 2018

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1
Public Awareness

Notices (BB)

2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

27

28 29 30 31



February 2018

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

24

25 26 27 28



March 2018

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1
EIA-176 Report Due
(BB)

2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15
Annual Gas Report
Due(BB)

Odorant Monitoring

16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

24

25 26
Patrolling -
Business Districts

and Outside

Business Districts

27 28 29 30 31

*Call and schedule Leakage Survey on Business District with Heath Consultants for July 2018*
(Leakage Survey in both Business and non-Business Districts to be completed in summer 2019)



April 2018

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16
Odorant Monitoring

17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

28

29 30



May 2018

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

26

27 28 29 30 31



June 2018

Sun Mon Tub Wed Thu Fri Sat

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15
Odorant Monitoring

16

17 18 19 20 21 22
Rectifier Reading -
Pipe-to-Soil

23

24 25
Patrolling -
Business Districts

26 27 28
Review O&M &

Emergence Plan
(BB)

29 30

July 2017 - Public Awareness Notices (BB)



10. Explain how the budget is determined for Liberty's gas operations, ineluding, but not

limited to, whether Liberty's budget is based upon revenues derived from the gas operation.

RESPONSE: The budget for Liberty's gas operations is based on a eomparison of estimated,

actual, and budgeted year-end revenues and expenses for prior fiscal years. Reasonable

adjustments are made to budgeted revenues and expenses based on anticipated projects and

circumstances. The City of Liberty's budget for its General Fund includes revenue for payment

in lieu of taxes and a transfer from the gas fund to the General Fund. Since Mayor Brown

became mayor in 2015, the two City budgets have reflected smaller amounts of transfers from

the gas fund to the General Fund. The actual amounts of transfer from the gas fiand in fiscal year

2016 and to date in fiscal year 2017 have also been reduced as compared to the previous year,

which is consistent with the budgeting trend.

WITNESSES: Bridgett Blake and Mayor Steven Brown



AFFIDAVIT

The undersigned, Bridgett Blake, being duly sworn, deposes and says that she is the City
Clerk for the City of Liberty, that she has supervised the preparation of the foregoing responses
to the Commission Staffs First Request for Information, and that the responses are true and
accurate to the best of her knowledge, infomation, and belief formed after a reasonable inquiry .

Bridgett Blake, Affiant

NOTARY CERTIFICATE

STATE OF KENTUCKY

COUNTY OF CASEY

Subscribed, acknowledged and sworn to before mebyBridgett Blake onthis I iff day

of •rnnuTTh _, 2017.

My commission expires:

TARYP


